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Under this €40,000,000,000 Programme, KBC Internationale Financieringsmaatschappij N.V. (the “Issuer” or “KBC IFIMA N.V.") may from time to time issue notes
(the “Notes”, which term shall include Senior Guaranteed Notes and Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes, as such terms are defined below) denominated in any
currency agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) (as defined below). This Base Prospectus supersedes and replaces in its entirety the previous Base
Prospectus dated 15th September, 2009. Any Notes issued under the Programme on or after the date of this Base Prospectus are issued subject to the provisions
herein. This does not affect any Notes issued prior to the date of this Base Prospectus.

The payments and, where applicable, delivery of all amounts due in respect of the Notes will be guaranteed by KBC Bank NV (the “Guarantor”) pursuant to a deed
of guarantee dated 18th September, 2008 (the “Guarantee”) executed by the Guarantor. The Final Terms (as defined below) for each Tranche (as defined on page
124 below) of Notes will state whether the Notes of such Tranche are to be guaranteed on (i) an unsubordinated basis (“Senior Guaranteed Notes”) or (ii) a
subordinated basis (“Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes”).

The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding will not exceed €40,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies
calculated as described in the Programme Agreement).

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified under “Summary of the Programme” and any additional Dealer appointed
under the Programme from time to time, which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis (each a “Dealer” and together the “Dealers”).

Application has been made to the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the “CSSF”) in its capacity as competent authority under the Luxembourg Act
dated 10th July, 2005 relating to prospectuses for securities (loi relative aux prospectus pour valeurs mobiliéres) for the approval of this document as a base
prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the “Prospectus Directive”). Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
for Notes issued under the Programme during the period of 12 months from the date of publication of this Base Prospectus to be admitted to trading on the Regulated
Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to be listed on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. References in this Base Prospectus to Notes being
“listed” (and all related references) shall mean that such Notes are intended to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market and
are intended to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market is a regulated market for the purposes of Directive
2004/39/EC.

Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and any other terms and conditions not
contained herein which are applicable to each Tranche of Notes will be set forth in a final terms document (the “Final Terms”) which, with respect to Notes to be
listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, will be filed with the CSSF.

The Programme provides that Notes may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such other or further stock exchanges or markets as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s). In the case of Notes which are (i) to be admitted to trading on a regulated market (as defined in the Prospectus
Directive) of a European Economic Area Member State other than the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (a “Host Member State”); or (ii) offered
to the public in a Host Member State, the Issuer will request that the CSSF delivers to the competent authority of the Host Member State a certificate of approval
pursuant to Article 18 of the Prospectus Directive attesting that the Base Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Directive and, if so
required by the relevant Host Member State, a translation of the summary set out in this Base Prospectus. The Issuer may also issue unlisted Notes and/or Notes not
admitted to trading on any market.

The Notes of each Tranche will initially be represented by a temporary global Note (a “Temporary Global Note”) which will be delivered on or prior to the issue
date thereof to a common safekeeper (the “Common Safekeeper”) or a common depositary (the “Common Depositary”), as the case may be, in either case for
Euroclear Bank SA/NV (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (“Clearstream, Luxembourg”), and/or any other agreed clearance system which will
be exchangeable, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, for either a permanent global Note (a “Permanent Global Note”) or Notes in definitive form, in each
case upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership as required by U.S. Treasury regulations. A Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable for definitive
Notes, either upon request or only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event, all as further described in “Form of the Notes” below.

The Issuer may agree with any Dealer that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes herein, in which event (in
the case of Notes intended to be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on a stock exchange) a Supplement to this Base Prospectus, if appropriate, will
be made available which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in relation to such Notes.

Prospective purchasers of Notes should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant Notes and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they
consider the suitability of the relevant Notes as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Certain issues of Notes involve a
high degree of risk and potential investors should be prepared to sustain a loss of all or part of their investment. It is the responsibility of prospective purchasers
to ensure that they have sufficient knowledge, experience and professional advice to make their own legal, financial, tax, accounting and other business
evaluation of the merits and risks of investing in the Notes and are not relying on the advice of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer in that regard. See “Risk
Factors” below. In addition any applicable Final Terms may contain specific risk factors relating to the relevant issue of Notes.

Arranger
KBC Bank

Dealers
Banca IMI Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
BNP PARIBAS BofA Merrill Lynch
Citi Commerzbank
Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Goldman Sachs International
HSBC J. P. Morgan
KBC Bank KBL European Private Bankers S.A.
Nomura Santander Global Banking & Markets

UBS Investment Bank

The date of this Base Prospectus is 14th July, 2010.



The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), and are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain
exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons
(see “Subscription and Sale” below).

All references in this document to “U.S. dollars” and “U.S.$” refer to United States dollars, those to
“£” and “Sterling” refer to pounds sterling, and those to “euro” or “€” refer to the currency introduced
at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the
functioning of the European Union, as amended.



This Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus
Directive.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor (together the “Responsible Persons”) accepts responsibility for
the information contained in this Base Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the
Issuer and the Guarantor (each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the
information contained in this Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and contains no
omissions likely to affect its import.

The Base Prospectus may only be used for the purposes for which it has been published. Subject as
provided in the applicable Final Terms, the only persons authorised to use this Base Prospectus (and,
therefore, acting in association with the Issuer) in connection with an offer of Notes are the persons
named in the applicable Final Terms as the relevant Dealer or the Managers and the persons named
in, or identifiable following, the applicable Final Terms as the Financial Intermediaries, as the case
may be.

The applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) contain information relating to any underlying equity
security, index, commodity, currency, debt security or other item(s) (each a “Reference Item”) to
which the relevant Notes relate and which is contained in such Final Terms. However, unless
otherwise expressly stated in a Final Terms, any information contained therein relating to a
Reference Item will only consist of extracts from, or summaries of, information contained in
financial and other information released publicly by the issuer, owner or sponsor, as the case may
be, of such Reference Item. Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor will, unless otherwise expressly
stated in the applicable Final Terms, confirm that such extracts or summaries have been accurately
reproduced and that, so far as it is aware, and is able to ascertain from information published by
the issuer, owner or sponsor, as the case may be, of such Reference Item, no facts have been omitted
that would render the reproduced inaccurate or misleading.

This Base Prospectus is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are incorporated herein
by reference (see “Documents Incorporated by Reference” below). This Base Prospectus shall be read
and construed on the basis that such documents are incorporated and form part of this Base
Prospectus.

The Dealers have not separately verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability
is accepted by the Dealers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this
Base Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer or the Guarantor in connection with
the Programme or the Notes or their distribution. The statements made in this paragraph are made
without prejudice to the responsibility of the Issuer and the Guarantor under the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not
contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus or any other information supplied in
connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer or the Guarantor or
any of the Dealers.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme
or any Notes (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (ii) should be
considered as a recommendation or constituting an invitation or offer by the Issuer, the Guarantor or
any of the Dealers that any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any other information supplied in
connection with the Programme or of any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each investor
contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent investigation of the financial



condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor.
Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme
or any Notes constitutes an offer by or on behalf of the Issuer or the Guarantor or any of the Dealers
to any person to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.

The delivery of this Base Prospectus does not at any time imply that the information contained herein
concerning the Issuer and/or the Guarantor is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that
any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time
subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers expressly do not
undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer or the Guarantor during the life of
the Programme. Investors should review, inter alia, the documents incorporated herein by reference
when deciding whether or not to purchase any Notes.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in
certain jurisdictions. In particular, this Base Prospectus has not been submitted for clearance to the
Autorité des marchés financiers.

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes
in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction.

The Issuer, the Guarantor and the Dealers do not represent that this document may be lawfully
distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration
or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or
assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, unless
specifically intended to the contrary in the applicable Final Terms, no action has been taken by the
Issuer, the Guarantor or the Dealers which is intended to permit a public offering of any Notes or
distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.
Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus
nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction,
except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations.
Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Notes come must inform themselves
about, and observe any such restrictions. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this
Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, the European Economic Area, the
United Kingdom, France, The Netherlands, Japan, Italy, the Czech Republic, Poland and the Republic
of Slovenia (see “Subscription and Sale” below).

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii)
below may apply, any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has
implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”) will be made pursuant to
an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from
the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly any person making or
intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Notes which are the subject of an offering
contemplated in this Base Prospectus as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of those
Notes may only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer
to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer, or (ii) if a
prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member
State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the
competent authority in that Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in accordance
with the Prospectus Directive, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently been completed
by final terms which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of the



Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State and such offer is made in the period beginning
and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable.
Except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) above may apply, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor and any
Dealer has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in
which an obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such

offer.
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In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable
Final Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price
of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no
assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will
undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which
adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and,
if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the
issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant
Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance
with all applicable laws and rules.



SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following is a brief summary only and should be read in conjunction with the rest of this
document and, in relation to any Notes, in conjunction with the applicable Final Terms and, to the
extent applicable, the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out herein. Any decision to invest in
any Notes should be based on a consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole, including the
documents incorporated by reference, by any investor.

Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus Directive in each
Member State of the European Economic Area, no civil liability will attach to the Responsible
Persons in any such Member State in respect of this Summary, including any translation hereof,
unless it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this
Base Prospectus. Where a claim relating to information contained in this Base Prospectus is brought
before a court in a Member State of the European Economic Area, the claimant may, under the
national legislation of the Member State where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs
of translating the Base Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Information relating to the Issuer and the Guarantor

Issuer: KBC IFIMA N.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Guarantor, was incorporated in The Netherlands on 15th
April, 1982 in the form of a limited liability company.

Business of the Issuer: The lIssuer assists in the financing of the activities of
companies belonging to the Group (meaning the Guarantor
and its subsidiaries).

Guarantor: KBC Bank NV, a wholly-owned subsidiary of KBC Group
NV, was incorporated in Belgium on 17th March, 1998 in
the form of a company with limited liability.

Business of the Guarantor: The Guarantor is a multi-channel bank that caters primarily
for private persons and small and medium-sized companies.
Its geographic focus is on Europe. In its two home markets
(Belgium and Central and Eastern Europe), the Guarantor
has a very important and (in some cases) a leading position.
In the rest of the world, the Guarantor has a selective
presence in certain countries or areas. The Guarantor’s core
business is retail and private bancassurance (including asset
management) in its two home markets, though it is also
active in services to corporations and market activities.

Risk Factors: There are certain factors which may affect the Guarantor’s
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes issued under
the Programme. These include (i) risks relating to economic
activity in the markets in which it operates and (ii) risks
relating to its business activities, including credit risk,
market risk, operational risk and liquidity risk.

Notes may involve a high degree of risk.

There are certain factors which are material for the purpose
of assessing the market risks associated with investing in any



issue of Notes, which include, without limitation, the fact
that Notes are unsecured obligations of the Issuer, that there
may be a time lag between valuation and settlement in
relation to a Note, that there may be potential conflicts of
interest, that market disruptions or other events may occur
in respect of the particular Reference Item(s) to which the
amounts payable and/or deliverable, as the case may be, in
respect of the relevant Notes may relate, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms, that there may be taxation risks, that
there may be illiquidity of the Notes in the secondary
market, that there may be the risk that performance of the
Issuer’s obligations under the Notes may become illegal,
that there may be exchange rate risks and exchange controls
and that the market value of the Notes may be affected by
the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor and
a number of additional factors.

In addition, prospective investors in Reference Item Linked
Notes (as defined under “Risks related to the structure of a
particular issue of Notes” in “Risk Factors”) should
understand the risks of transactions involving Reference
Item Linked Notes and should reach an investment decision
only after careful consideration, with their advisers, of the
suitability of such Reference Item Linked Notes in light of
their particular financial circumstances, the information set
forth herein and the information regarding the relevant
Reference Item Linked Notes and the particular Reference
Item(s) to which the value of, or payments in respect of, the
relevant Reference Item Linked Notes may relate, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Where the applicable Final Terms specify one or more
Reference Item(s), the relevant Notes will represent an
investment linked to the performance of such Reference
Item(s) and prospective investors should note that the return
(if any) on their investment in the Notes will depend upon
the performance of the relevant Reference Item(s).

See “Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of
Notes” in “Risk Factors”.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST REVIEW THE
APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS TO ASCERTAIN WHAT THE
RELEVANT REFERENCE ITEM(S) ARE AND TO SEE HOW
BOTH ANY CASH AMOUNTS OR ASSET AMOUNTS ARE
PAYABLE OR DELIVERABLE AND HOW ANY PERIODIC
INTEREST PAYMENTS ARE DETERMINED AND WHEN
ANY SUCH AMOUNTS ARE PAYABLE AND/OR
DELIVERABLE, AS THE CASE MAY BE, BEFORE MAKING
ANY DECISION TO PURCHASE ANY REFERENCE ITEM
LINKED NOTES.



Information relating to the Programme
Description:
Arranger:

Dealers:

Issuing, Listing and Principal
Paying Agent:

Size:

Distribution:

Currencies:

Redenomination:

Maturities:

Issue Price:

Euro Medium Term Note Programme
KBC Bank NV

Banca IMI S.p.A.

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
Banco Santander, S.A.

BNP PARIBAS

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft
Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited
Goldman Sachs International

HSBC Bank plc

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

KBC Bank NV

KBL European Private Bankers S.A.
Merrill Lynch International

Nomura International plc

UBS Limited

KBL European Private Bankers S.A.

Up to €40,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies
outstanding at any time. The Issuer and the Guarantor may
at any time increase the amount of the Programme in
accordance with the terms of the Programme Agreement.

Notes may be distributed by way of private or public
placement and in each case on a syndicated or non-
syndicated basis.

Such currencies as may be specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

The applicable Final Terms may provide that certain Notes
may be redenominated in euro.

Such maturities as may be specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Notes having a maturity of less than one year will, if the
proceeds of the issue are accepted in the United Kingdom,
constitute deposits for the purposes of the prohibition on
accepting deposits contained in section 19 of the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA”) unless they are
issued to a limited class of professional investors and have a
denomination of at least £100,000 or its equivalent, see
“Subscription and Sale”.

Notes may be issued on a fully paid or a partly paid basis
and at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or
premium over, par.



Form of Notes:

Terms of the Notes:

Change of Interest/Payment Basis:

Index Linked Notes:

Equity Linked Notes:

The Notes will be issued in bearer form, as described in
“Form of the Notes”.

The following types of Note may be issued: (i) Notes which
bear interest at a fixed or floating rate; (ii) Notes which do
not bear interest; and (iii) Notes which bear interest, and/or
the redemption amount of which is, calculated by reference
to a specified factor such as movements in an index or a
currency exchange rate, changes in share or commodity
prices or changes in the credit of an underlying entity. In
addition, Notes which have any combination of the
foregoing features may also be issued.

Interest periods, rates of interest and the terms of and/or
amounts payable or deliverable on redemption may differ
depending on the Notes being issued and such terms will be
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Notes may be converted from one interest and/or payment
basis to another if so provided in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes
will be made by reference to a single index or a basket of
indices and/or such formula as specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked
Redemption Notes will be calculated by reference to a
single index or a basket of indices. The Notes will be
redeemed by payment of the Redemption Amount specified
in the applicable Final Terms, or if not so specified, as
defined in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes.

If an Index Adjustment Event occurs, the Notes may be
subject to adjustment, the index the subject of such an event
may be substituted by a replacement index or the Issuer may
redeem the Notes, as more fully set out under “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes”.

Payments of interest in respect of Equity Linked Interest
Notes will be calculated by reference to a single equity
security or basket of equity securities on such terms as
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments of principal in respect of Equity Linked
Redemption Notes will be calculated by reference to a
single equity security or a basket of equity securities. The
Notes will be redeemed by payment of the Redemption
Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms or, if not so
specified, as defined in the “Terms and Conditions of the
Notes”. Equity Linked Redemption Notes may also provide
that redemption will be by physical delivery of a given
number of Reference Item(s). Accordingly, an investment in

10



Additional Disruption Events
(Index Linked Notes and
Equity Linked Notes only):

Disrupted Days (Index
Linked Notes and Equity
Linked Notes only):

Settlement Risk (Equity
Linked Redemption Notes
only):

Dual Currency Notes:

Equity Linked Redemption Notes may bear similar risks to a
direct equity investment and investors should take advice
accordingly.

If Potential Adjustment Events and/or De-listing, Merger
Event, Nationalisation and Insolvency and/or Tender Offer
are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the
Notes may be subject to adjustment, the equity security the
subject of such an event may be substituted by a
replacement equity security or, if De-listing, Merger Event,
Nationalisation and Insolvency and/or Tender Offer are
specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the
Notes may be redeemed, all as more fully set out under
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes”.

The Notes will be subject to adjustment or may be
redeemed upon the occurrence of any Additional
Disruption Event specified as applying in the applicable
Final Terms.

The Calculation Agent may determine that a Disrupted Day
has occurred or exists at a relevant time. Any such
determination may have an effect on the value of the Notes
and/or may delay settlement in respect of the Notes.
Prospective investors should review the “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes” and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the
Notes.

Where any Notes are to be settled by Physical Delivery, the
Calculation Agent may determine that a Settlement
Disruption Event is subsisting and/or, where “Failure to
deliver due to Illiquidity” is specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms, that it is impossible or impractical to
deliver when due some or all of the assets due to be
delivered due to illiquidity in the relevant market. Any such
determination may affect the value of the Notes and/or may
delay settlement in respect of the Notes and/or result in
whole or partial cash settlement in respect of the Notes.
Prospective investors should review the “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes” and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the
Notes.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual
Currency Notes will be made in such currencies, and based
on such rates of exchange, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

11



Zero Coupon Notes:

Credit Linked Notes:

Commodity Linked Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to
their nominal amount and will not bear interest other than
in the case of late payment.

Subject to alternative procedures pursuant to Auction
Settlement (as set out below), amounts payable in respect of
the Notes will be calculated by reference to the credit of a
specified entity or entities.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied, the Notes will be
redeemed, and the Issuer will, if Cash Settlement is specified
as the applicable Settlement Method in the applicable Final
Terms, pay the Credit Event Redemption Amount or, if
Physical Delivery is specified as the applicable Settlement
Method in the applicable Final Terms, Deliver the
Deliverable Obligations comprising the Asset Amount.

Where Auction Settlement is specified as the applicable
Settlement Method in the applicable Final Terms and an
Auction Final Price Determination Date occurs, the Auction
Final Price will be determined according to an auction
procedure set out in the applicable rules published by ISDA
on its website at www.isda.org (or any successor website
thereto) from time to time and may be amended from time
to time.

If Auction Settlement is specified as the applicable
Settlement Method in the applicable Final Terms and a
Credit Event Determination Date occurs, the Notes will be
redeemed and the lIssuer will pay the Credit Event
Redemption Amount.

Prospective investors should review the “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes” and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the
Notes.

Payments of interest in respect of Commodity Linked Interest
Notes will be calculated by reference to a single commodity
or basket of commodities on such terms as may be specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments of principal in respect of Commodity Linked
Redemption Notes will be calculated by reference to a
single commodity or basket of commodities on such terms
as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Notes
will be redeemed by payment of the Redemption Amount
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Calculation Agent may determine that a Market
Disruption Event applicable to such Notes has occurred or
exists on a day that is a Pricing Date. In such circumstances,
the Relevant Price for that Pricing Date will be determined
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Currency Linked Notes:

Inflation Linked Notes:

lllegality:

Redemption:

in accordance with the first applicable Disruption Fallback
that provides the Relevant Price or that provides for the early
redemption of the Notes. The Market Disruption Events and
Disruption Fallbacks which apply to an issue of Notes will
either be set out in the applicable Final Terms or certain
Market Disruption Events and Disruption Fallbacks may be
deemed to apply to the Notes as set out in the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes including, but not limited to, a
delay in valuation or an early redemption of the Notes. Any
postponement or alternative provisions for valuation may
have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes. Prospective
investors should review the “Terms and Conditions of the
Notes” and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether
and how such provisions apply to the Notes.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and/or
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Currency
Linked Notes will be made in such currencies, and based on
such rates of exchange, as may be specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and/or
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Inflation
Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to a single
inflation index or basket of inflation indices on such terms
as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

In the event that the Calculation Agent determines in good
faith that the performance of the Issuer’s obligations under a
Series of Notes or that any arrangements made to hedge the
Issuer’s position under such Notes has or will become
unlawful, illegal, or otherwise prohibited in whole or in
part, the Issuer may, having given notice to Noteholders,
redeem all, but not some only, of the Notes of such Series,
each Note being redeemed at the Early Redemption
Amount, together, if appropriate, with accrued interest.

The applicable Final Terms relating to each Tranche of Notes
will indicate either that the Notes of such Tranche cannot be
redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in
specified instalments (see below), if applicable, or for
taxation reasons or following an Event of Default or on an
illegality or, in the case of Index Linked Notes, following an
Index Adjustment Event or, in the case of Equity Linked
Notes and if so specified as applying in the applicable Final
Terms, following a De-listing, Merger Event, Nationalisation
and Insolvency and/or Tender Offer or, in the case of Index
Linked Notes or Equity Linked Notes and if so specified in
the applicable Final Terms, following an Additional
Disruption Event or, in the case of Credit Linked Notes and
if so specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms,
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Denomination of Notes:

Taxation:

following a Merger Event) or that such Notes will be
redeemable at the option of the Issuer and/or the
Noteholders upon giving not less than 15 nor more than 30
days’ irrevocable notice (or such other notice period (if any)
as is indicated in the applicable Final Terms) to the
Noteholders or the Issuer, as the case may be, on a date or
dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at a price or
prices and on such terms as are indicated in the applicable
Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms may provide that Notes may be
redeemable in two or more instalments of such amounts and
on such dates as are indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Unless otherwise permitted by the current laws and
regulations, Notes having a maturity of less than one year
may be subject to restrictions on their denomination and
distribution, see “Notes with a maturity of less than one
year” above.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms. The minimum
denomination of each Note admitted to trading on a
regulated market within the European Economic Area or
offered to the public in a Member State of the European
Economic Area in circumstances which require the
publication of a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive
will be €1,000 (or, if the Notes are denominated in a
currency other than euro, the equivalent amount in such
currency).

Unless otherwise permitted by then current laws and
regulations, Notes having a maturity of less than one year
may be subject to restrictions on their denomination and
distribution, see “Notes with a maturity of less than one
year” above.

If Condition 11(a) is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, all payments in respect of the Notes
will be made without deduction of withholding taxes
imposed within The Netherlands (in the case of payments by
the Issuer) or Belgium (in the case of the Guarantor) subject
as provided in Condition 11(a). In the event that any such
deduction is made, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the
Guarantor, will be required to pay additional amounts to
cover the amounts so deducted.

If Condition 11(b) is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor
shall be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty,
withholding or other payment which may arise as a result of
the ownership, transfer, presentation and surrender for
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Expenses:

Negative Pledge:
Cross Default:

Status:

Listing and admission to trading:

Governing Law:

payment, or enforcement of any Note and all payments
made by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor
shall be made subject to any tax, duty, withholding or other
payment which may be required to be made, paid, withheld
or deducted.

If Physical Delivery is specified in the applicable Final Terms
as applying in relation to any Notes, all Delivery Expenses
arising from the delivery of any Asset Amount shall be for
the account of the relevant Noteholder and no delivery of
any Asset Amount shall be made until all Delivery Expenses
have been paid to the satisfaction of the Issuer by the
relevant Noteholder.

The terms of the Notes will not contain a negative pledge.

The terms of the Notes will not contain a cross-default
provision in respect of either the Issuer or the Guarantor.

The Issuer may issue Senior Guaranteed Notes or Dated
Subordinated Guaranteed Notes each of which will be
guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to the terms of the
Guarantee.

Application has been made to the CSSF to approve this
document as a base prospectus. Application has also been
made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Notes issued
under the Programme during the period of 12 months from
the date of publication of this Base Prospectus to be
admitted to trading on the Regulated Market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to be listed on the official
list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Notes may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may
be, on such other or further stock exchanges or markets as
may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s)
in relation to each Series. Notes which are neither listed nor
admitted to trading on any market may also be issued.

The applicable Final Terms will state whether or not the
relevant Notes are to be listed and/or admitted to trading
and, if so, on which stock exchanges or markets.

The Notes and the Guarantee will be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, English law except that
Condition 2(a)(iii) and 2(b)(iii) of the Notes will be governed
by Belgian Law and Clause 7 of the Guarantee dealing with
the different status of the obligations of the Guarantor under
the Guarantee in respect of Senior Guaranteed Notes and
Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes, respectively, will be
governed by Belgian law.
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Selling Restrictions:

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the
Notes in the United States, the European Economic Area,
the United Kingdom, France, The Netherlands, Japan, Italy,
the Czech Republic, Poland and the Republic of Slovenia ,
together with such other restrictions as may be required in
connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche
of Notes. See “Subscription and Sale” below.

The Issuer is a Category 2 Issuer and the Notes will be issued
in compliance with the TEFRA D Rules unless otherwise
specified in the applicable Final Terms.
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RISK FACTORS

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil
its obligations under Notes issued under the Programme. All of these factors are contingencies which
may or may not occur and neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor is in a position to express a view on
the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
Notes issued under the Programme are also described below.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the factors described below represent the principal
risks inherent in investing in Notes issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuer or the
Guarantor to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with any Notes may occur
for other reasons. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in
this Base Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

THE PURCHASE OF NOTES MAY INVOLVE SUBSTANTIAL RISKS AND MAY BE SUITABLE ONLY
FOR INVESTORS WHO HAVE THE KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE IN FINANCIAL AND
BUSINESS MATTERS NECESSARY TO ENABLE THEM TO EVALUATE THE RISKS AND THE MERITS
OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE NOTES. PRIOR TO MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION,
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSIDER CAREFULLY, IN LIGHT OF THEIR OWN
FINANCIAL CIRCUMSTANCES AND INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, (I) ALL THE INFORMATION SET
FORTH IN THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND, IN PARTICULAR, THE CONSIDERATIONS SET FORTH
BELOW AND (II) ALL THE INFORMATION SET FORTH IN THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS.
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD MAKE SUCH ENQUIRIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY
WITHOUT RELYING ON THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR OR ANY DEALER.

AN INVESTMENT IN NOTES LINKED TO ONE OR MORE REFERENCE ITEMS MAY ENTAIL
SIGNIFICANT RISKS NOT ASSOCIATED WITH INVESTMENTS IN A CONVENTIONAL DEBT
SECURITY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE RISKS SET OUT BELOW. THE AMOUNT PAID
BY THE ISSUER ON REDEMPTION OF THE NOTES MAY BE LESS THAN THE NOMINAL AMOUNT
OF THE NOTES, TOGETHER WITH ANY ACCRUED INTEREST, AND MAY IN CERTAIN
CIRCUMSTANCES BE ZERO. WHERE THE NOTES ARE REDEEMED BY THE ISSUER BY DELIVERY
OF REFERENCE ITEM(S) THE VALUE OF THE REFERENCE ITEM(S) MAY BE LESS THAN THE
NOMINAL AMOUNT OF THE NOTES, TOGETHER WITH ANY ACCRUED INTEREST, AND MAY IN
CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES BE ZERO.

CERTAIN ISSUES OF NOTES INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND POTENTIAL INVESTORS
SHOULD BE PREPARED TO SUSTAIN A LOSS OF ALL OR PART OF THEIR INVESTMENT.

Capitalised terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall bear the meanings ascribed to them in
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes” below.

Factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under Notes issued under the
Programme

The Issuer is a finance vehicle whose principal purpose is to raise debt to be on-lent to the Guarantor
and other subsidiaries of the Guarantor. Accordingly, it does not have any trading assets and does not
generate trading income. Notes issued under the Programme are guaranteed on a subordinated or an
unsubordinated basis, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, pursuant to the Guarantee.
Accordingly, if the Guarantor’s financial condition were to deteriorate, the Issuer and investors in the
Notes may suffer direct and materially adverse consequences.
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Factors that may affect the Guarantor’s ability to fulfil its obligations under the Guarantee
Economic Activity

The Guarantor’s business activities are dependent on the level of banking, finance and financial
services required by its customers. In particular, levels of borrowing are heavily dependent on
customer confidence, employment trends, the state of the economies the Guarantor does business in
and market interest rates at the time. As the Guarantor currently conducts the majority of its business
in Belgium and Central and Eastern Europe, its performance is influenced by the level and cyclical
nature of business activity in these countries which is in turn affected by both domestic and
international economic and political events. There can be no assurance that a weakening in these
economies will not have a material effect on the Guarantor’s future results.

Risks Related to the Guarantor’s Business

As a result of its business activities, the Guarantor is exposed to a variety of risks, the most significant
of which are credit risk, market risks, operational risk and liquidity risk. Failure to control these risks
could result in material adverse effects on the Guarantor’s financial performance and reputation.

Credit Risk

Risks arising from changes in credit quality and the recoverability of loans and amounts due from
counterparties are inherent in a wide range of the Guarantor’s businesses. Adverse changes in the
credit quality of the Guarantor’s borrowers and counterparties or a general deterioration in the
Belgian, Central and Eastern European or global economic conditions, or arising from systematic risks
in the financial systems, could affect the recoverability and value of its assets and require an increase
in the Guarantor’s provision for bad and doubtful debts and other provisions.

Market Risk

The most significant market risks the Guarantor faces are interest rate, foreign exchange and bond and
equity price risks. Changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and spreads may affect the interest rate
margin realised between lending and borrowing costs. Changes in currency rates affect the value of
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and may affect income from foreign exchange
dealing. The performance of financial markets may cause changes in the value of the Guarantor’s
investment and trading portfolios. The Guarantor has implemented risk management methods to
measure and monitor routinely its exposure, resulting in mitigation and control of these other market
risks to which the Guarantor is exposed to. However, it is difficult to predict with accuracy changes
in economic or market conditions and to anticipate the effects that such changes could have on the
Guarantor’s financial performance and business operations.

Operational Risk

The Guarantor’s businesses are dependent on the ability to process a very large number of
transactions efficiently and accurately. Operational risk and losses can result from fraud, errors by
employees, failure to document transactions properly or to obtain proper internal authorisation,
failure to comply with regulatory requirements and conduct of business rules, equipment failures,
natural disasters or the failure of external systems, for example, those of the Guarantor’s suppliers or
counterparties. Although the Guarantor has implemented risk controls and loss mitigation actions,
and substantial resources are devoted to developing efficient procedures and to staff training, it is not
possible to implement procedures which are fully effective in controlling each of the operational risks.
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Liquidity Risk

The inability of a bank, including the Guarantor, to anticipate and provide for unforeseen decreases
or changes in funding sources could have consequences on such bank’s ability to meet its obligations
when they fall due.

Impact of Regulatory Changes

The Guarantor is subject to financial services laws, regulations, administrative actions and policies in
each location that the Guarantor operates. Changes in supervision and regulation, in particular in
Belgium and Central and Eastern Europe, could materially affect the Guarantor’s business, the
products and services offered or the value of its assets. Although the Guarantor works closely with its
regulators and continually monitors the situation, future changes in regulation, fiscal or other policies
can be unpredictable and are beyond the control of the Guarantor.

Investment Considerations Relating to the Business of the Guarantor and the Guarantor together
with its consolidated subsidiaries (“KBC Bank Group”)

The global economic crisis has posed significant challenges for KBC Bank Group generally, and has
severely eroded the capital structure of, and sources of liquidity available to, many banks, including
KBC Bank Group

International economic conditions deteriorated significantly starting from the second half of 2008,
and further more during the first half of 2009 and the economies of the United States, Europe, Japan
and most of the developed world have been in a sharp recession until the second half of 2009. During
this period numerous governments were forced into the role of lender of last resort as funding
available to financial institutions from lenders and institutional investors was scarce and threatened
the continued stability of the global financial system. The tightening of credit and resulting market
turmoil precipitated market volatility, as well as widespread reduction of business activity generally.
This has adversely affected KBC Bank Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations,
liquidity and access to capital and credit. While economic conditions have improved, the economy
now being in a phase of fragile recovery, and volatility has decreased from the unprecedented levels
of early 2009, substantial uncertainty in global markets and significant constraints on the global credit
system remain. There continues to be significant constraints on the availability of reasonable cost of
funding in wholesale debt markets, reflecting uncertainty about the impact of the Greek crisis and
broader political and economic environment and other factors.

The losses and asset impairments resulting from the current economic situation forced many banks,
including KBC Bank, to raise additional capital in order to maintain appropriate capital ratios. See
“KBC Bank — Recent Events — Capital Strengthening transactions with the Belgian and Flemish
governments”. Nonetheless, KBC Bank Group and/or certain of its regulated subsidiaries may need to
raise additional capital, either as a result of further asset impairments or other factors. For example,
regulatory capital requirements may increase in the future and/or the regulators may change the
manner in which they apply existing regulatory requirements to recapitalized banks, including KBC
Bank Group. Any failure by KBC Bank Group to maintain its minimum regulatory capital ratios could
result in administrative actions or sanctions, which in turn may have a material adverse effect on
operating results, financial condition and prospects. There could also be an expectation for
internationally active banks to hold levels of core Tier | capital and shareholders’ equity at levels
higher than those required by regulators. This could lead the Group being required to hold higher
levels of capital than currently envisaged. Any such requirement could reduce the Group’s
operational flexibility or eliminate earnings growth.
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While KBC Bank Group believes that it is adequately capitalized at this time, further injections of
additional equity capital, if necessary, may be difficult to achieve in this challenging environment.

In December 2009, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the “Committee”) issued for
consultation a package of proposals to strengthen global capital and liquidity regulations with the
goal of promoting a more resilient banking sector. The consultation closed on 16th April, 2010. The
Committee has planned a comprehensive impact assessment with the objective to ensure that the
new standards introduce greater resiliency of individual banks and of the banking sector during
periods of stress, while promoting sound credit and financial intermediation activity. It is expected
that final proposals will be issued by the end of 2010 with implementation by the end of 2012,
possibly with transitional and grandfathering arrangements. It is likely that the proposals, if
implemented in their current form without transitional and grandfathering arrangements, would have
a negative impact on KBC Bank Group’s capital ratios.

The acceptance of Government support also includes the acceptance of related risks and
obligations

The acceptance of Government support (see “The Guarantor - Recent Events — Capital Strengthening
transactions with the Belgian and Flemish governments”) and the approval of these measures under
the European Union State Aid rules was subject to submission by the Belgian authorities of a
restructuring plan for KBC Bank Group containing measures to safeguard the long-term viability of
KBC Group and to ensure its capacity to repay within a reasonable timeframe the capital received.
The restructuring plan was approved on 18th November, 2009 and, under the terms of such approval,
the European Commission has imposed a range of conditions on KBC Group and KBC Bank Group,
including divestment, conduct of business and other restrictions, some of which could materially
impact KBC Bank Group.

Approval by the European Commission of the restructuring plan was also subject to the imposition of
certain behavioural commitments imposed on KBC Group, such as maintaining a minimum solvency
ratio, respecting certain limitations on executive compensation, some restrictions on acquisitions, and
adhering to a price leadership ban in certain conditions.

Further, the strategic plan requires KBC Group and its subsidiaries, including KBC Bank, to engage in
restructuring according to the terms outlined in such plan, including the disposal and downsizing of
a significant number of business activities of KBC Group. KBC Group has implemented a range of
initiatives to give effect to the plan, including some important steps to de-risk aspects of merchant
banking business unit businesses. Such divestments are obligatory, even though the European
Commission has permitted KBC Group flexibility to avoid the need of conducting disposals at below
book-value prices. A number of these initiatives are at a preliminary stage and there can be no
assurance that all of the divestments will be realized within the envisaged timeframe or of the cost at
which they will be implemented. Additionally, there can be no assurance that the disposal of one or
more of the businesses will not impact negatively income and profitability in the future.

Market conditions can adversely affect KBC Bank Group’s results, and current financial and credit
market conditions may persist or worsen and could adversely affect the results of operations of KBC
Bank Group

The businesses and earnings of KBC Bank Group and of its individual business segments are affected
by market conditions. General business and economic conditions that could affect KBC Bank Group
include the level and volatility of short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, employment
levels, bankruptcies, household income, consumer spending, fluctuations in both debt and equity
capital markets, liquidity of the global financial markets, fluctuations in foreign exchange, the
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availability and cost of credit, investor confidence, and the strength of the economies in which KBC
Bank Group operates. The most significant market risks KBC Bank Group faces are interest rate,
foreign exchange and bond and equity price risks. Changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and
spreads may affect the interest rate margin realised between lending and borrowing costs. Changes
in currency rates affect the value of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and may
affect income from foreign exchange dealing. The performance of financial markets may cause
changes in the value of KBC Bank Group’s investment and trading portfolios. KBC Bank Group has
implemented risk management methods to measure and monitor routinely its exposure, resulting in
mitigation and control of these and other market risks— see “Risk Management” below. However, it is
difficult to predict with accuracy changes in economic or market conditions and to anticipate fully
the effects that such changes could have on KBC Bank Group’s financial performance and business
operations. Accordingly, as a result of changing market conditions and the influence of financial and
industry cycles, KBC Bank Group’s results of operations are subject to volatility that may be outside
the control of KBC Bank Group.

In addition, KBC Bank Group’s business activities are dependent on the level of banking, finance and
financial services required by its customers. In particular, levels of borrowing are heavily dependent
on customer confidence, employment trends, the state of the economies in which KBC Bank Group
does business and market interest rates at the time. As KBC Bank Group currently conducts the
majority of its business in Belgium and Central & Eastern Europe, its performance is influenced by the
level and cyclical nature of business activity in Belgium and Central & Eastern Europe, which is in
turn affected by both domestic and international economic and political events. There can be no
assurance that a further deterioration in these economies will not have a material adverse effect on
KBC Bank Group’s future results of operations.

KBC Bank Group has significant credit risk exposure, and could be adversely affected by the
soundness of other borrowers and financial institutions.

KBC Bank Group is subject to general credit risks inherent in a wide range of KBC Bank Group’s
businesses, including risks arising from changes in the credit quality and recoverability of loans and
amounts due from counterparties. Third parties that owe KBC Bank Group money, securities or other
assets may not pay or perform under their obligations. These parties include, among others, borrowers
under loans made by KBC Bank Group, the issuers whose securities KBC Bank Group holds,
customers, trading counterparties, counterparties under swaps and credit and other derivative
contracts, clearing agents, exchanges, clearing houses, guarantors, re-insurers, and other financial
intermediaries. These parties may default on their obligations to KBC Bank Group due to bankruptcy,
lack of liquidity, downturns in the economy or real estate values, operational failure or other reasons.

The current economic conditions have resulted in a dramatic increase in defaults for lenders globally
and for KBC Bank Group specifically. This increase in the scope and scale of defaults is evidenced by
the very significant increase in the value of impaired loans in the portfolio of KBC Bank Group during
2009, and by the increase in non-performing loans. Any further adverse changes in the credit quality
of KBC Bank Group’s borrowers, counterparties or other obligors could affect the recoverability and
value of its assets and require an increase in KBC Bank Group’s provision for bad and doubtful debts
and other provisions.

A key driving factor of the current global crisis is a dramatic increase in the volume and quantity of
credit defaults across all sectors of the economy. KBC Bank Group’s ability to engage in routine
transactions has been and may continue to be adversely affected by the actions and commercial
soundness of other financial institutions as well as the performance of various loans and other assets
it holds.
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A downgrade in the credit rating of KBC Bank Group may limit access to certain markets and
counterparties and may necessitate the posting of additional collateral to counterparties or exchanges

The credit ratings of KBC Bank Group are important to maintaining access to key markets and trading
counterparties. The major rating agencies regularly evaluate KBC Bank Group and its securities, and
their ratings of debt and other securities are based on a number of factors, including financial strength
as well as factors not entirely within the control of KBC Bank Group, including conditions affecting
the financial services industry generally. Following a series of downgrades in 2008, over the course
of 2009, each of the major rating agencies lowered its rating again by one notch. Finally, in March
2010, Moody’s reconfirmed its previous rating.

In light of the difficulties in the financial services industry and the financial markets, there can be no
assurance that KBC Bank Group will maintain the current ratings.

KBC Bank Group's failure to maintain its credit ratings could adversely affect the competitive position
of KBC Bank Group, make entering into hedging transactions more difficult and increase borrowing
costs or limit access to the capital markets or the ability of KBC Bank Group to engage in funding
transactions at all. A further reduction in KBC Bank Group credit ratings also could have a significant
impact on certain trading revenues, particularly in those businesses where longer term counterparty
performance is critical. In connection with certain trading agreements, KBC Bank Group may be
required to provide additional collateral in the event of a credit ratings downgrade.

Market volatility may adversely affect KBC Bank Group’s banking and asset management businesses

Market volatility can negatively affect KBC Bank Group’s banking and asset management activities
through a reduction in demand for products and services, a reduction in the value of assets held by
KBC Bank Group, a decline in the profitability of certain assets and a loss of liquidity in certain asset
classes. High volatility can occur not only as a result of purely economic factors, but also as a result
of war, acts of terrorism, natural disasters, or other similar events.

Volatility and declines in market indices can reduce unrealised gains or increase unrealised losses in
KBC Bank Group’s various portfolios or the demand for some of its banking or asset management
products. A steep decline in the stock or bond markets could adversely affect investments, could
reduce market liquidity, and would likely reduce the popularity of products linked to financial assets
and could have a material adverse effect on trading results.

Fluctuations in interest rates affect the returns KBC Bank Group earns on fixed interest investments.
Interest rate changes also affect the market values of, and the amounts, of capital gains or losses KBC
Bank Group takes on the fixed interest securities it holds. Over the past several years, movements in
short- and long-term interest rates have affected KBC Bank Group’s net interest income and how
much and when KBC Bank Group recognised gains and losses on securities held in its investment
portfolios. KBC Bank Group expects such movements will continue to do so in the future. In addition,
variations in interest rate sensitivity may exist within the re-pricing periods or between the different
currencies in which KBC Bank Group holds interest rate positions. A mismatch of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities in any given period may, in the event of changes in interest rates,
have a material effect on the financial condition or result from operations of KBC Bank Group.

The dramatic increase in volatility across the global financial system has impaired the ability of KBC
Bank Group to hedge and manage risk. Liquidity risk is inherent in much of KBC Bank Group’s
business. Numerous asset classes KBC Bank Group deals in have low liquidity, such as privately
placed loans, mortgage loans, derivative contracts, illiquid bonds, real estate and limited partnership
interests. KBC Bank Group may also make investments directly in securities that do not have an
established liquid trading market or are otherwise subject to restrictions on sale or hedging, and as a
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result may have limited ability to reduce those positions and therefore reduce the risk associated with
such positions. The confluence of the volatility evident in the market in 2008 and 2009 and the
decline in market participants due to bankruptcies and other factors has made it even more difficult
than anticipated to manage the risk associated with these illiquid investments.

KBC Bank Group’s risk management methods may leave it exposed to unidentified, unanticipated, or
incorrectly quantified risks, which could lead to material losses or material increases in liabilities

The current global economic situation and the widespread problems faced by both small and
multinational banks have demonstrated the inadequacies of many aspects of risk management in the
banking industry. KBC Bank Group devotes significant resources to developing risk management
policies, procedures and assessment methods for its banking and asset management businesses. KBC
Bank Group applies both quantitative and qualitative methods to arrive at quantifications of risk
exposures. Nonetheless, such risk management techniques and strategies may not be fully effective
in mitigating risk exposure in all economic market environments or against all types of risk, including
risks that KBC Bank Group fails to identify or anticipate. These failures can be exacerbated where
other market participants are using risk or trading models that are similar to those of KBC Bank. As a
result, KBC Bank Group’s losses thus could be significantly greater than such measures would
indicate.

KBC Bank Group uses a value-at-risk (“VaR”) approach as one of its key risk management tools. The
VaR model, while still widely used among financial institutions and approved by the relevant
regulators, has been criticised for failing to take into account extraordinary events, such as the
bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers in September of 2008, when evaluating ongoing risks in the portfolio.
Additionally, VaR, as with some of KBC Bank Group’s other quantitative tools and metrics for
managing risk, is based upon use of observed historical market behaviour and assumptions about the
degrees of correlation among prices of various asset classes or other market indicators. In times of
market stress or other unforeseen circumstances, such as the market conditions experienced during
2008 and also in 2009, previously negatively correlated assets may become positively correlated, or
previously positively correlated assets may move in different directions. These types of market
movements may limit the effectiveness of hedging strategies and may cause KBC Bank Group to incur
significant losses. These changes in correlation can be exacerbated where other market participants
are using risk or trading models with assumptions or algorithms that are similar to that of KBC Bank
Group. In these and other cases, it may be difficult to reduce risk positions due to the activity of other
market participants or widespread market dislocations, including circumstances where asset values
are declining significantly or no market exists for certain assets.

KBC Bank Group also uses a qualitative approach to managing risks that takes into account a broader
set of risks but is less precise than quantified modelling and could prove insufficient. Unanticipated
or incorrectly quantified risk exposures could result in material losses in KBC Bank Group’s banking
and asset management businesses.

The documentation and settlement of certain derivative contracts may leave KBC Bank Group
exposed to lower recovery rates in the event of a counterparty bankruptcy

KBC Bank Group is party to derivative transactions, including credit derivatives. Some of these
derivative instruments are individually negotiated and non-standardised, which can make exiting,
transferring or settling the position difficult. Many credit derivatives require delivery to the
counterparty of the underlying security, loan or other obligation in order to receive payment. In a
number of cases, KBC Bank Group does not hold, and may not be able to obtain, the underlying
security, loan or other obligation. This could cause KBC Bank Group to forfeit the payments due under
these contracts or result in settlement delays with the attendant credit and operational risk as well as
increased costs.
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Derivative contracts and other transactions entered into with third parties are not always confirmed
by the counterparties on a timely basis. While the transaction remains unconfirmed, KBC Bank Group
is subject to heightened credit and operational risk and in the event of default may find it more
difficult to enforce the contract. In addition, as new and more complex derivative products have been
created, covering a wider array of underlying credit and other instruments, disputes about the terms
of the underlying contracts may arise, which could impair the ability of KBC Bank Group to effectively
manage its risk exposures from these products and subject KBC Bank Group to increased costs.

As part of the financial services industry, KBC Bank Group faces substantial competitive pressures that
could adversely affect its results of operations

There is substantial competition in the regions in which KBC Bank Group does business for the types
of banking and asset management and other products and services that KBC Bank Group provides.
In its home Belgian market, KBC Bank Group faces substantial competition from BNP Paribas Fortis,
ING Group and Dexia, among others. In addition, KBC Bank Group has recently faced increased
competition in the Belgian savings market from smaller-scale banking competitors seeking to enlarge
their respective market shares by offering higher interest rates. In Central & Eastern Europe, KBC Bank
Group faces competition from the regional banks in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates and
from others, such as UniCredit, Erste Bank and Raiffeisen International. Competition is also affected
by consumer demand, technological changes, regulatory actions and other factors. These competitive
pressures could result in increased pricing pressures on a number of KBC Bank Group’s products and
services and in the loss of market share in one or more such markets.

There are risks associated with KBC Bank Group’s businesses in Central & Eastern Europe and Russia

KBC Bank Group conducts significant operations in Central & Eastern Europe, and also conducts
business in Russia. While these markets have, in years past, afforded KBC Bank Group opportunities
to develop its business in countries that had fast-growing economies and, in many cases, are now
member states of the European Union, KBC Bank Group’s activities in this region should be
understood in the context of the inherent risks associated with doing business in Central & Eastern
Europe and Russia, including economic, political, legal and other risks that are not a feature of doing
business in KBC Bank Group’s primary Belgian and many other markets. In addition, the financial
crisis has led to deep recession in most of the Central & Eastern European countries until the
beginning of 2010 and had a dramatic adverse impact on public finances across the whole region.
These factors impacted the performance of KBC Bank Group in 2008 and 2009 (with the result that
further planned expansion in the region has been significantly scaled back) and there continues to be
very serious challenges faced by the economies of several countries in Central & Eastern Europe and
Russia where KBC Bank Group does business. Furthermore, although KBC Bank Group aims to
implement consistent IT, risk management, lending and other controls throughout its business, the
integration of such new businesses has in the past and will continue to present challenges and
associated risks for some time to come, including the integration risks that accompany all
acquisitions.

While KBC Bank Group manages its operational risks, these risks remain an inherent part of its
businesses.

KBC Bank Group’s businesses are dependent on the ability to process a very large number of
transactions efficiently and accurately. Operational risks and losses can result, among others, from
fraud, errors by employees, failure to document transactions properly or to obtain proper international
authorization, failure to comply with regulatory requirements and conduct of business rules,
equipment failures, natural disasters or the failure of external systems (for example, those of KBC Bank
Group'’s suppliers or counterparties). Although KBC Bank Group has implemented risk controls and
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loss mitigation actions with respect to these operational risks, and substantial resources are devoted
to developing and monitoring efficient procedures, group standards and to staff training to manage
them, it is not possible to implement procedures that are fully effective in controlling each of these
operational risks.

Catastrophic events, terrorist attacks and other acts of war could have a negative impact on the
business and results of operations of KBC Bank Group.

Catastrophic events, terrorist attacks, other acts of war or hostility, and responses to those acts may
create economic and political uncertainties, which could have a negative impact on economic
conditions in the regions in which KBC Bank Group operates and, more specifically, on the business
and results of operations of KBC Bank Group in ways that cannot be predicted.

KBC Bank Group’s results of operations can be adversely affected by significant adverse regulatory
developments, including changes in tax law

KBC Bank Group conducts its businesses subject to ongoing regulation and associated regulatory
risks, including the effects of changes in the laws, regulations, policies and interpretations in Belgium
and the other regions in which KBC Bank Group does business. Changes in supervision and
regulation, in particular in Belgium and Central & Eastern Europe, could materially affect KBC Bank
Group’s business, the products and services offered by it or the value of its assets. The recent global
economic downturn has resulted in calls for significant changes to regulatory regimes in the U.S.,
Belgium and other countries. Although KBC Bank Group works closely with its regulators and
continually monitors regulatory developments, it is too early to be able to determine the impact of
such changes, and future changes in regulation, fiscal or other policies can be unpredictable and
beyond its control.

Factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Notes
issued under the Programme

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each of the risks highlighted below could adversely affect the trading price of any Notes or the rights
of investors under any Notes and, as a result, investors could lose some or all of their investment. Each
of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks
inherent in investing in Notes issued under the Programme, but the Issuer and/or the Guarantor may
be unable to pay or deliver amounts on or in connection with any Notes for other reasons and neither
the Issuer nor the Guarantor represents that the statements below regarding the risks of holding any
Notes are exhaustive. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out
elsewhere in this Base Prospectus (including any documents deemed to be incorporated by reference
herein) and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its
own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

(i) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the
merits and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement and all the information
contained in the applicable Final Terms;

(i) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on
its overall investment portfolio;
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(iii)  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Notes, including Notes with principal and/or interest payable in one or more currencies, or
where the currency for principal and/or interest payments is different from the potential
investor’s currency;

(iv)  understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any
relevant indices and financial markets; and

(v)  be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear
the applicable risks.

In addition an investment in the Equity Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes, Commodity Linked Notes,
Credit Linked Notes, Currency Linked Notes, Inflation Linked Notes (each as defined below) or other
Notes linked to one or more Reference Item(s), may entail significant risks not associated with
investments in a conventional debt security, including but not limited to, the risks set out in “Risks
related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes set out below”.

Some Notes are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not
purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate
addition of risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in Notes which are
complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to
evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of
the Notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential investor’s overall investment
portfolio.

Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes

A wide range of Notes may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Notes may have
features which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of the
most common such features:

Notes subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

An optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to limit their market value. During any period when
the Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise
substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any
redemption period.

In respect of Notes which are conventional debt securities, the Issuer may be expected to redeem
such Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the Notes. At those times, an
investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate
as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a
significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other
investments available at that time.

Risks relating to Reference Item Linked Notes

Dual Currency Notes, Equity Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes, Commodity Linked Notes, Credit
Linked Notes, Currency Linked Notes and Inflation Linked Notes (each as defined below and together
“Reference Item Linked Notes”) involve a high degree of risk.
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Prospective investors in Reference Item Linked Notes should understand the risks of transactions
involving Reference Item Linked Notes and should reach an investment decision only after careful
consideration, with their advisers, of the suitability of such Reference Item Linked Notes in light of
their particular financial circumstances, the information set forth herein and the information regarding
the relevant Reference Item Linked Notes and the particular Reference Item(s) to which the value of,
or payments in respect of, the relevant Reference Item Linked Notes may relate, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

As the amount of interest payable periodically and/or principal payable at maturity may be linked to
the performance of the relevant Reference Item(s), an investor in a Reference Item Linked Note must
generally be correct about the direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipated change in the value
of the relevant Reference Item(s).

Where the applicable Final Terms specify one or more Reference Item(s), the relevant Reference Item
Linked Notes will represent an investment linked to the economic performance of such Reference
Item(s) and prospective investors should note that the return (if any) on their investment in Reference
Item Linked Notes will depend upon the performance of such Reference Item(s). Potential investors
should also note that whilst the market value of such Reference Item Linked Notes is linked to such
Reference Item(s) and will be influenced (positively or negatively) by such Reference Item(s), any
change may not be comparable and may be disproportionate. It is impossible to predict how the level
of the relevant Reference Item(s) will vary over time. In contrast to a direct investment in the relevant
Reference Item(s), Reference Item Linked Notes represent the right to receive payment or delivery, as
the case may be, of the relevant cash amount and/or asset amount on the relevant Maturity Date as
well as periodic payments of interest (if specified in the applicable Final Terms), all or some of which
may be determined by reference to the performance of the relevant Reference Item(s). The applicable
Final Terms will set out the provisions for the determination of any cash amount and/or asset amount
and of any periodic interest payments.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST REVIEW THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS TO ASCERTAIN WHAT
THE RELEVANT REFERENCE ITEM(S) ARE AND TO SEE HOW BOTH ANY CASH AMOUNTS
AND/OR ASSET AMOUNTS ARE PAYABLE OR DELIVERABLE AND HOW ANY PERIODIC INTEREST
PAYMENTS ARE DETERMINED AND WHEN ANY SUCH AMOUNTS ARE PAYABLE AND/OR
DELIVERABLE, AS THE CASE MAY BE, BEFORE MAKING ANY DECISION TO PURCHASE ANY
REFERENCE ITEM LINKED NOTES.

Fluctuations in the value and/or volatility of the relevant Reference Item(s) may affect the value of the
relevant Reference Item Linked Notes. Investors in Reference Item Linked Notes may risk losing their
entire investment if the value of the relevant Reference Item(s) does not move in the anticipated
direction.

There is no return on Reference Item Linked Notes other than the potential payment or delivery, as
the case may be, of the relevant cash amount and/or asset amount on the Maturity Date and payment
of any periodic interest payments.

Other factors which may influence the market value of Reference Item Linked Notes include interest
rates, potential dividend or interest payments (as applicable) in respect of the relevant Reference
Item(s), changes in the method of calculating the level of the relevant Reference Item(s) from time to
time and market expectations regarding the future performance of the relevant Reference Item(s), its
composition and such Reference Item Linked Notes.

If any of the relevant Reference Item(s) is an index, the value of such Reference ltem on any day will
reflect the value of its constituents on such day. Changes in the composition of such Reference Item
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and factors (including those described above) which either affect or may affect the value of the
constituents, will affect the value of such Reference Item and therefore may affect the return on an
investment in Reference Item Linked Notes.

The Issuer may issue several issues of Reference Item Linked Notes relating to particular Reference
Item(s). However, no assurance can be given that the Issuer will issue any Reference Item Linked
Notes other than the Reference Item Linked Notes to which the applicable Final Terms relate. At any
given time, the number of Reference Item Linked Notes outstanding may be substantial. Reference
Item Linked Notes provide opportunities for investment and pose risks to investors as a result of
fluctuations in the value of the Reference Item(s) to which such Reference Item Linked Notes relate.

Dual Currency Notes

Dual Currency Notes may be redeemable by payment of either the par value amount or an amount
determined by reference to the value of the Reference Item(s), which may be less than the par value
amount. Interest payable on Dual Currency Notes may be calculated by reference to the value of one
or more Reference Item(s).

Equity Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal (“Equity Linked Redemption Notes”) and/or
interest (“Equity Linked Interest Notes”) payable is dependent upon the price of or changes in the
price of an equity security or a basket of equity securities or where, depending on the price of or
change in the price of an equity security or a basket of equity securities, on redemption the Issuer’s
obligation is to deliver specified assets (together “Equity Linked Notes”).

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Equity
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, movements in the price of the
equity security or basket of equity securities may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not
correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant price of the equity security or equity securities may affect the actual yield to investors, even
if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price
of the equity security or equity securities, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable is determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the equity security or equity securities on principal and/or interest payable will be magnified.

If a Disrupted Day occurs, this may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the
value of the Notes and/or may delay (i) any applicable interest payments in the case of Equity Linked
Interest Notes, or (ii) settlement in the case of Equity Linked Redemption Notes. Prospective
purchasers should review the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the Notes.

If Potential Adjustment Events and/or De-listing, Merger Event, Nationalisation and Insolvency and/or
Tender Offer is/are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, prospective purchasers should
note that the Notes may be subject to either (A) adjustment by the Calculation Agent or (B) the
substitution of the equity security the subject of such an event by a replacement equity security
selected by the Calculation Agent, as further provided in Condition 8(b)(i), in the case of a Potential
Adjustment Event, or Condition 8(b)(ii), in the case of a Delisting, Merger Event, Nationalisation or
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Insolvency and/or Tender Offer, or, in the case of a Delisting, Merger Event, Nationalisation or
Insolvency and/or Tender Offer, the Issuer may also redeem the Notes early at the Early Redemption
Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms.

In respect of Equity Linked Notes relating to an equity security or equity securities originally quoted,
listed and/or dealt as of the Trade Date in a currency of a member state of the European Union that
has not adopted the single currency in accordance with the Treaty establishing the European
Community, as amended, if such equity security or equity securities is/are at any time after the Trade
Date quoted, listed and/or dealt exclusively in euro on the relevant Exchange, prospective purchasers
should note that the Calculation Agent will adjust any one or more of the relevant Interest Amount
and/or the Redemption Amount and/or the Asset Amount and/or the Strike Price and/or the Multiplier
and/or any of the other terms of the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms as the
Calculation Agent determines in its sole and absolute discretion to be appropriate to preserve the
economic terms of the Notes. Prospective purchasers should also note that the Calculation Agent will
make any conversion necessary for the purposes of any such adjustment as of the relevant Valuation
Time at an appropriate mid-market spot rate of exchange determined by the Calculation Agent
prevailing as of the relevant Valuation Time.

Where the Notes provide for Physical Delivery, the Calculation Agent may determine that a
Settlement Disruption Event is subsisting and/or where “Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity” is
specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, that it is impossible or impracticable to deliver
when due some or all of the assets due to be delivered due to illiquidity in the relevant market. A
Settlement Disruption Event is an event beyond the control of the Issuer, as a result of which, in the
opinion of the Calculation Agent, delivery of the specified assets to be delivered by or on behalf of
the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes and/or the applicable Final Terms, is not practicable. Any such determination may affect the
value of the Notes and/or may delay settlement in respect of the Notes.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date, the volatility of the equity security or equity securities, the dividend rate (if any) and
the financial results and prospects of the issuer or issuers of the relevant equity security or equity
securities as well as economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including
factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any such securities may be
traded.

Index Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal (“Index Linked Redemption Notes”) and/or
interest (“Index Linked Interest Notes”) payable is dependent upon the level, or changes in the level,
of an index or a basket of indices (together “Index Linked Notes”).

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Index
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (i) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion
of their principal investment. In addition, movements in the level of the index or basket of indices
may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates,
currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant level of the index or indices may
affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In
general, the earlier the change in the level of an index or result of a formula, the greater the effect on
yield.
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If the amount of principal and/or interest payable is determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of
the index or the indices on principal and/or interest payable will be magnified.

If a Disrupted Day occurs, this may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the
value of the Notes and/or may delay (i) any applicable interest payments, in the case of Index Linked
Interest Notes, or (ii) settlement, in the case of Index Linked Redemption Notes. Prospective
purchasers should review the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the Notes.

If an Index Adjustment Event (as defined in the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes” and relating to
a relevant index modification, cancellation or disruption) occurs, prospective purchasers should note
that the Issuer may either require the Calculation Agent to determine if such Index Adjustment Event
has a material effect on the Notes and, if so, to either (A) calculate the Reference Price or (B) substitute
the index the subject of such Index Adjustment Event with a replacement index, in each case as
further provided in Condition 7(b)(ii)(@), or may redeem the Notes early at the Early Redemption
Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the level of the index or indices. The level of the index or indices
may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions,
including the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any securities comprising the index
or indices may be traded.

Additional Disruption Events (Index Linked Notes and Equity Linked Notes only)

The Notes will be subject to adjustment or may be redeemed upon the occurrence of any Additional
Disruption Event specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms.

Commodity Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal (“Commodity Linked Redemption Notes”)
and/or interest (“Commodity Linked Interest Notes”) payable is dependent upon the price of or
changes in the price of a commodity or a basket of commodities or where, depending on the price
or change in the price of the commodity or basket of commodities, on redemption the Issuer’s
obligation is to deliver specified assets (together “Commodity Linked Notes”).

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Commodity
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the movements in the price of
the commodity or basket of commodities may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not
correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant price of the commodity or commodities may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the
average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price or
prices of the commodities, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable is determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the commodity or commodities on principal, interest payable or the amount of specified assets
deliverable will be magnified.
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The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the price of the commodity or commodities.

Commodity futures markets are highly volatile. Commodity markets are influenced by, among other
things, changing supply and demand relationships, weather, governmental, agricultural, commercial
and trade programmes and policies designed to influence commodity prices, world political and
economic events, and changes in interest rates. Moreover, investments in futures and options
contracts involve additional risks including, without limitation, leverage (margin is usually a
percentage of the face value of the contract and exposure can be nearly unlimited). A holder of a
futures position may find such position becomes illiquid because certain commodity exchanges limit
fluctuations in certain futures contract prices during a single day by regulations referred to as “daily
price fluctuation limits” or “daily limits”. Under such daily limits, during a single trading day no trades
may be executed at prices beyond the daily limits. Once the price of a contract for a particular future
has increased or decreased by an amount equal to the daily limit, positions in the future can neither
be taken nor liquidated unless traders are willing to effect trades at or within the limit. This could
prevent a holder from promptly liquidating unfavourable positions and subject it to substantial losses.
Futures contract prices in various commodities occasionally have exceeded the daily limit for several
consecutive days with little or no trading. Similar occurrences could prevent the liquidation of
unfavourable positions and subject an investor in a Commodity Linked Note linked to such contract
prices to substantial losses.

In relation to Commodity Linked Notes, if the Calculation Agent determines that a Market Disruption
Event applicable to such Notes has occurred or exists on a day that is a Pricing Date, the Relevant
Price for that Pricing Date will be determined in accordance with the first applicable Disruption
Fallback that provides the Relevant Price or that provides for the early redemption of the Notes. The
Market Disruption Events and Disruption Fallbacks which apply to an issue of Notes will either be set
out in the applicable Final Terms or certain Market Disruption Events and Disruption Fallbacks may
be deemed to apply to the Notes as set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes including, but
not limited to, a delay in valuation or an early redemption of the Notes. Any postponement or
alternative provisions for valuation may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes. Prospective
investors should review the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the Notes.

The yield on Commodity Linked Notes linked to commodity futures contracts or commodity indices
may not be perfectly correlated to the trend in the price of the underlying commodities as the use of
such future commodity contracts generally involves a rolling mechanism. This means that the
commodity futures contracts which expire prior to the relevant payment date under the relevant Notes
are replaced with future commodity contracts that have a later expiry date. Investors may therefore
only marginally benefit from any rise/fall in prices on such commodities.

Moreover, investors should consider that the commodity futures contracts could have a trend which
differs significantly from that of the commodity spot markets. The trend in the price of a commodity
futures contracts compared to the underlying commodity is closely linked to the present and future
level of the production of the underlying commodity or to the level of estimated natural reserves,
particularly in the case of energy linked products. In addition, the price of the relevant commodity
futures contract may not be considered an accurate prediction of a market price, since it also includes
the so-called carrying costs (such as, for example, warehouse costs, insurance covering the goods,
etc.), which also contribute toward the determination of the price of the commodity futures contracts.
These factors which directly influence the commodities prices substantially explain the imperfect
correlation between the commodity spot markets and the commodity futures contracts.
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Credit Linked Notes

General risks relating to Credit Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes (“Credit Linked Notes”) (i) where the amount payable on redemption is
dependent upon whether certain events (“Credit Events”) have occurred in respect of one or more
Reference Entity/Entities and, if so, on the value of certain specified assets of such Reference
Entity/Entities or (ii) where, if such events have occurred, the Issuer’s obligation on redemption is to
deliver certain specified assets.

Prospective investors in any such Credit Linked Notes should be aware that depending on the terms
of the Credit Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) (A) the payment
of the redemption amount or interest or (B) the delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different
time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment.

The market price of Credit Linked Notes may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other things,
the time remaining to the redemption date or settlement date, as applicable, prevailing credit spreads
and the creditworthiness of the Reference Entity/Entities which in turn may be affected by the
economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Where the Credit Linked Notes provide for physical delivery, the Issuer may determine that the
specified assets to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including, without
limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or market
conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of assets which are
loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or (b) assets which the Issuer
and/or any of its Affiliates has not received under the terms of any transaction and/or trading position
entered into by the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates to hedge the Issuer’s obligations in respect of the
Credit Linked Notes. Any such determination may delay settlement in respect of the Credit Linked
Notes and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by an obligation to
pay a cash amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the Credit Linked Notes and, in the
case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation of such Credit Linked Notes
and, as a result, the amount payable on redemption. Prospective investors should review the Terms
and Conditions and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how such provisions should
apply to the Credit Linked Notes.

The Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer(s) or any of their respective Affiliates may have acquired, or
during the term of the Notes may acquire, non-public information with respect to the Reference
Entity/Entities that they may not disclose. Prospective investors must therefore make an investment
decision based upon their own due diligence and purchase the Credit Linked Notes in the knowledge
that non-public information which the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer(s) or any of their respective
Affiliates may have will not be disclosed to investors. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer(s)
and any of their respective Affiliates is under any obligation (i) to review on the Noteholders’ behalf,
the business, financial conditions, prospects, creditworthiness, status or affairs of the Reference
Entity/Entities or conduct any investigation or due diligence into the Reference Entity/Entities or (ii)
other than as may be required by applicable rules and regulations relating to the Notes, to make
available (a) any information relating to the Notes or (b) any non-public information they may possess
in respect of the Reference Entity/Entities.

In the case of Physical Delivery, where the Reference Obligation is a loan, in order for the Delivery
of the loan (or an interest in the loan) to be effected, the Reference Obligation must be capable of
being transferred to the Noteholders in accordance with its terms and the Noteholders must have the
capacity to hold such loan (or loan interest).
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The Issuer’s obligations in respect of Credit Linked Notes are irrespective of the existence or amount
of the Issuer’s and/or any of its Affiliates’ credit exposure to a Reference Entity and the Issuer and/or
any of its Affiliates need not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss as a result of the
occurrence of a Credit Event.

2003 ISDA Credit Derivatives Definitions

While there are many similarities between the terms used in this Base Prospectus (in particular, in
Condition 10) and the terms used in the 2003 ISDA Credit Derivative Definitions, as supplemented
from time to time, (the “Credit Derivative Definitions”), there are a number of differences. In
particular, the Issuer and the Guarantor have determined that certain provisions of the Credit
Derivatives Definitions, which are intended for use by market participants in “over the counter”
transactions, require amendment when incorporated in the terms of an offering of securities such as
the Credit Linked Notes. Therefore, a prospective investor should understand that the complete terms
and conditions of the Credit Linked Notes are as set out in this Base Prospectus and the applicable
Final Terms and that the Credit Derivative Definitions are not incorporated by reference herein.
Consequently, investing in Credit Linked Notes is not necessarily equivalent to investing in a credit
default swap that incorporates the Credit Derivatives Definitions.

While ISDA has published and supplemented the Credit Derivatives Definitions in order to facilitate
transactions and promote uniformity in the credit derivatives market, the credit derivatives market has
evolved over time and is expected to continue to change. Consequently, the Credit Derivatives
Definitions and the terms applied to credit derivatives, including Credit Linked Notes, are subject to
further evolution. Past events have shown that the views of market participants may differ as to how
the Credit Derivatives Definitions operate or should operate. As a result of the continued evolution in
the market, the Credit Linked Notes may not conform to future market standards. Such a result may
have a negative impact on the Credit Linked Notes.

There can be no assurances that changes to the terms applicable to credit derivatives generally will
be predicable or favourable to the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Noteholders. Future amendments or
supplements to the terms applicable to credit derivatives generally will only apply to Credit Linked
Notes that have already been issued if the Issuer and the Noteholders agree to amend such Credit
Linked Notes to incorporate such amendments or supplements and other conditions to amending the
Credit Linked Notes have been met.

Risks relating to Auction Settlement of Credit Linked Notes

Auction Settlement

Where an Auction Final Price Determination Date occurs, the Auction Final Price will be determined
according to an auction procedure set out in the relevant Transaction Auction Settlement Terms, a
form of which will be published by ISDA on its website at www.isda.org (or any successor website
thereto) from time to time and may be amended from time to time. The Auction Final Price determined
pursuant to an auction may be less than the market value that would otherwise have been determined
in respect of the relevant Reference Entity or Reference Obligation. The Issuer, the Guarantor and the
Noteholders may have little or no influence in the outcome of any such auction.

Auction Final Price and the Issuer’s and/or the Guarantor’s ability to influence the Auction Final Price

If the Notes are redeemed following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the amount payable in respect
of the Notes may be determined by reference to the Auction Final Price determined according to an
auction procedure set out in the relevant Transaction Auction Settlement Terms. There is a possibility
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that the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent (or one of their respective Affiliates) would act
as a participating bidder in any such auction. In such capacity, it may take certain actions which may
influence the Auction Final Price including (without limitation): (a) providing rates of conversion to
determine the applicable currency conversion rates to be used to convert any obligations which are
not denominated in the auction currency into such currency for the purposes of the auction; and (b)
submitting bids, offers and physical settlement requests with respect to the relevant Deliverable
Obligations. In deciding whether to take any such action (or whether to act as a participating bidder
in any auction), the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent (or an Affiliate of any of them) shall
be under no obligation to consider the interests of any Noteholder.

If the relevant Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee does not decide to conduct an auction
with respect to obligations of the relevant Reference Entity satisfying the relevant characteristics as set
out in the applicable Final Terms, then the Fallback Settlement Method shall apply. In such
circumstances, either the Final Price will be determined pursuant to the Valuation Method or the
Issuer will Deliver to Noteholders the Asset Amount.

Role of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee

Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees were established pursuant to the March 2009
Supplement to the Credit Derivatives Definitions to make determinations that are relevant to the
majority of the credit derivatives market and to promote transparency and consistency. In respect of
a Credit Event relating to a Credit Linked Note, prospective purchasers should note that the relevant
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee has the power to make binding decisions on critical
issues such as whether a Credit Event has occurred, which obligations are to be valued and whether
an auction should take place in accordance with and as more fully described in the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committees Rules, a form of which may be published by ISDA on its website at
www.isda.org (or any successor website thereto) from time to time and as amended from time to time
in accordance with the terms thereof. Consequently, the payments on the Notes and the timing of any
such payments may be affected by any such relevant decisions or subsequent determinations if
Auction Settlement is specified as the applicable Settlement Method in the applicable Final Terms.

Credit Event and Succession Event Backstop Dates

In respect of a Credit Event relating to a Series of Credit Linked Notes, a Credit Event may not be
triggered unless a request is submitted to ISDA for the relevant Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee to consider whether the relevant event constitutes a Credit Event within 60 calendar days
of the occurrence of such potential Credit Event unless a Credit Event Determination Date has already
occurred with respect to such event. For Succession Events, the look-back period is 90 calendar days
and functions similarly. These provisions mean that there is a time limit on the ability to act on a
Credit Event or Succession Event and that it is possible that the Notes could be affected by a Credit
Event or Succession Event that took place prior to the Trade Date.

Settlement Suspension, Adjustments and Interest Provisions

If, following the determination of a Credit Event Determination Date in accordance with sub-
paragraph (a) of the definition of Credit Event Determination Date but prior to the Settlement Date or,
to the extent applicable, a Valuation Date, ISDA publicly announces that the conditions to convening
a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee to determine the occurrence of a Credit Event, the
Calculation Agent may at its option determine that the applicable timing requirements of Condition
10 and the definitions of Credit Event Redemption Date, Valuation Date, Physical Settlement Period,
and any other provision of Condition 10 as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole discretion,
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shall toll and be suspended and remain suspended (such period of suspension, a “Suspension Period”)
until such time as ISDA subsequently publicly announces that the relevant Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee has resolved (a) that a Credit Event has or has not occurred or (b) not to
determine such matters. Once ISDA has publicly announced that the relevant Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee has made such resolution, the relevant timing requirements of Condition
10 that have previously tolled or been suspended shall resume on the Business Day following such
public announcement by ISDA.

In the event of any such Suspension Period, the Calculation Agent may make (i) such consequential
or other adjustment(s) or determination(s) to or in relation to Condition 10 as may be desirable or
required either during or following any relevant Suspension Period to account for or reflect such
suspension and (ii) determine the effective date of such adjustment(s) or determination(s).

In the case of interest bearing Notes:

(A)  if a Suspension Period falls in any one or more Interest Period(s), then no interest (or any interest
on any delayed payment of interest) shall accrue during each portion of an Interest Period
during which a Suspension Period exists; and

(B) if an Interest Payment Date falls in a Suspension Period, such Interest Payment Date will be
deferred until such date as determined by the Calculation Agent falling no earlier than the first
Interest Payment Date and no later than the fifth Interest Payment Date following the end of the
Suspension Period, all subject to the provisions of Condition 3 and Conditions 10(e), (f) and (g).

Currency Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal (“Currency Linked Redemption Notes”)
and/or interest (“Currency Linked Interest Notes”) payable is dependent upon movements in currency
exchange rates or are payable in one or more currencies which may be different from the currency in
which the Notes are denominated (together “Currency Linked Notes”).

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Currency
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected and (iii) they may lose
all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, movements in currency exchange rates
may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates or other
indices and the timing of changes in the exchange rates may affect the actual yield to investors, even
if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in currency
exchange rates, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable is dependent upon movements in currency
exchange rates and is determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference
to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the currency exchange rates on principal or
interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and, if the amount of principal and/or interest payable
is dependent upon movements in currency exchange rates, may depend upon the time remaining to
the redemption date and the volatility of currency exchange rates. Movements in currency exchange
rates may be dependent upon economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.
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Inflation Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal (“Inflation Linked Redemption Notes”)
and/or interest (“Inflation Linked Interest Notes”) payable is dependent upon movements in an
inflation index or a basket of inflation indices (together “Inflation Linked Notes”).

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Inflation
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion
of their investment.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable is dependent upon movements in the level of one
or more inflation indices and is determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by
reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of the relevant inflation
indices on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and, if the amount of principal and/or interest payable
is dependent upon movements in the level of one or more inflation indices, may depend upon the
time remaining to the redemption date and the volatility of the relevant inflation indices.

Many economic and market factors may influence the value of Inflation Linked Notes including, inter
alia:

. general economic, financial, political or regulatory conditions;
o fluctuations in the prices of various consumer goods and energy resources; and
o inflation and expectations concerning inflation.

Any such factors may either offset or magnify each other.

Partly-paid Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Failure to
pay any subsequent instalment could result in an investor losing all of his investment.

Variable rate Notes with a multiplier or other leverage factor

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include
multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other
similar related features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that
do not include those features.

Inverse Floating Rate Notes

Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a
reference rate such as the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The market values of such Notes
typically are more volatile than market values of other conventional floating rate debt securities based
on the same reference rate (and with otherwise comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Notes are
more volatile because an increase in the reference rate not only decreases the interest rate of the
Notes, but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest rates, which further adversely affects the
market value of these Notes.
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Capped Floating Rate Notes

Capped Floating Rate Notes usually have an interest rate equal to the sum of a reference rate such as
LIBOR and the specified margin (if any) subject to a maximum specified rate. The maximum amount
of interest payable in respect of these Notes will occur when the sum of the reference rate and the
specified margin (if any) equals the maximum specified rate. Investors in Capped Floating Rate Notes
will therefore not benefit from any increase in the relevant reference rate which, when the specified
margin is added to such reference rate, would otherwise cause such interest rate to be exceed the
maximum specified rate. The market value of these Notes would therefore typically fall the closer the
sum of the relevant reference rate and the margin is to the maximum specified rate.

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate,
or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the Issuer has the right to effect such a conversion, this
will affect the secondary market and the market value of such Notes since the Issuer may be expected
to convert the rate when it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If the Issuer converts
from a fixed rate to a floating rate in such circumstances, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes
may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the
same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on
other Notes. If the Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in such circumstances, the fixed
rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on its Notes.

Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium from their principal
amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for
conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the
greater the price volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable
maturities.

The Issuer’s obligations under Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes are subordinated

The lIssuer’s obligations under Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes will be unsecured and
subordinated. In the event of a dissolution or liquidation (including, without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, bankruptcy (“faillissement”) and moratorium (“surséance van betaling”) under the laws
of The Netherlands) of the Issuer, the relevant Noteholders’ claims shall be subordinated in right of
payment to the claims of unsecured creditors of the Issuer (other than creditors in respect of
indebtedness which is subordinated to at least the same extent as the Notes).

The Guarantor’s obligations under the Dated Subordinated Guarantee are subordinated

Claims in respect of the Dated Subordinated Guarantee constitute direct, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and shall, in the event of dissolution or liquidation (meaning
any event creating a “samenloop van schuldeisers/concours de créanciers” including, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, bankruptcy (“faillissement/faillite”), moratorium (“gerechtelijk
akkoord/concordat judiciaire”) and judicial or voluntary liquidation (“liquidation volontaire ou
forcée/vrijwillige of gedwongen vereffening”), under the laws of Belgium) of the Guarantor, be
subordinated in right of payment to the claims of depositors and other unsecured creditors of the
Guarantor (other than creditors in respect of indebtedness which is subordinated to at least the same
extent as the obligations of the Guarantor in respect of the Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes).

37



Additional Risk Factors

Additional risk factors in relation to specific issues of Notes may be included in the applicable Final
Terms.

General risks related to a particular issue of Notes
No Claim against any Reference Item

A Note will not represent a claim against any Reference Item and, in the event that the amount paid
on redemption of the Notes is less than the nominal amount of the Notes, a Noteholder will not have
recourse under a Note to any Reference Item.

An investment in Notes linked to one or more Reference Items may entail significant risks not
associated with investments in conventional debt securities, including but not limited to the risks set
out in this section “Risks related to the structure of a particular issues of Notes”. The amount paid
or value of the specified assets delivered by the Issuer on redemption of such Notes may be less than
the principal amount of the Notes, together with any accrued interest, and may in certain
circumstances be zero.

Hedging

In the ordinary course of its business, including without limitation in connection with its market
making activities, the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates may effect transactions for its own account or
for the account of its customers and hold long or short positions in the Reference ltem(s) or related
derivatives. In addition, in connection with the offering of the Notes, the Issuer and/or any of its
affiliates may enter into one or more hedging transactions with respect to the Reference Item(s) or
related derivatives. In connection with such hedging or market-making activities or with respect to
proprietary or other trading activities by the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates, the Issuer and/or any of
its affiliates may enter into transactions in the Reference Item(s) or related derivatives which may affect
the market price, liquidity or value of the Notes and which could be adverse to the interests of the
relevant Noteholders.

Conflicts of Interest

Where the lIssuer acts as Calculation Agent or the Calculation Agent is an affiliate of the Issuer,
potential conflicts of interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and Noteholders, including
with respect to certain determinations and judgements that the Calculation Agent may make pursuant
to the Notes that may influence the amount receivable or specified assets deliverable on redemption
of the Notes.

The Issuer and any Dealer may at the date hereof or at any time hereafter, be in possession of
information in relation to a Reference Item that is or may be material in the context of the Notes and
may or may not be publicly available to Noteholders. There is no obligation on the Issuer or any
Dealer to disclose to Noteholders any such information.

The Issuer and/or any of its affiliates may have existing or future business relationships with any
Reference Item(s) (including, but not limited to, lending, depositary, risk management, advisory and
banking relationships), and will pursue actions and take steps that they or it deems necessary or
appropriate to protect their and/or its interests arising therefrom without regard to the consequences
for a Noteholder.
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Risks related to Notes generally

Set out below is a brief description of certain risks relating to the Notes generally:

Modlification, waivers and substitution

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to
consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind
all Noteholders including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and
Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes also provide that the Agent and the Issuer may agree, without
the consent of the Noteholders to any modification (subject to certain specific exceptions) of the
Agency Agreement which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders or any modification of
the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons, the Agency Agreement, the Guarantee or the Deed of Covenant
which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or to comply
with mandatory provisions of law.

EU Savings Directive

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income (the “Savings Directive”),
Member States are required to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of
payments of interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to an individual
resident in that other Member State or to certain limited types of entities established in that other
Member State. However, for a transitional period, Luxembourg and Austria are instead required
(unless during that period they elect otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such
payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain
other agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries). Until
31st December, 2009, Belgium also operated a transitional withholding tax system as provided
above. By two Royal Decrees dated 27th September, 2009 and published in the Belgian Official
Gazette (Belgisch Staatsblad/Moniteur Belge) on 1st October, 2009, the Belgian State elected to
abandon the transitional withholding system and provide information in accordance with the EU
Savings Directive as from T1st January, 2010.

A number of non-EU countries including Switzerland, and certain dependent or associated territories
of certain Member States have adopted similar measures (either provision of information or a
withholding system; a withholding system in the case of Switzerland) in relation to payments made
by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in a
Member State. In addition, the Member States have entered into reciprocal provision of information
or transitional withholding arrangements with certain of those dependent or associated territories in
relation to payments made by a person in a Member State to, or collected by such a person for, an
individual resident in one of those territories.

On 15th September, 2008 the European Commission issued a report to the Council of the European
Union on the operation of the Savings Directive, which included the Commission’s advice on the
need for changes to the Savings Directive. On 13th November, 2008 the European Commission
published a more detailed proposal for amendments to the Savings Directive, which included a
number of suggested changes. The European Parliament expressed its opinion on this proposal on
24th April, 2009 and the Council adopted unanimous conclusions on 9th June, 2009 relating to the
proposal. If any of those proposed changes are made in relation to the Savings Directive, they may
amend or broaden the scope of the requirements described above.

39



If a payment were to be made or collected through a Member State or non-EU country or dependent
or associated territories which has opted for a withholding system and an amount of, or in respect of,
tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither the Issuer nor any Paying Agent nor any other
person would be obliged to pay additional amounts with respect to any Note as a result of the
imposition of such withholding tax. The Issuer is required to maintain a Paying Agent in a Member
State that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to the Savings Directive.

Change of law

The Notes will be governed by English law, except that the subordination provisions under the Dated
Subordinated Guaranteed Notes and the Dated Subordinated Guarantee will be governed by Belgian
law. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English
law or administrative practice or Belgian law or administrative practice after the date of this Base
Prospectus.

Notes where denominations involve integral multiples: definitive Notes

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified
Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible
that such Notes may be traded in amounts that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified
Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount
which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing
system at the relevant time may not receive a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should
definitive Notes be printed) and would need to purchase a principal amount of Notes such that its
holding amounts to a Specified Denomination.

If definitive Notes are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a
denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid
and difficult to trade.

No taxation gross-up on certain issues of Notes

If Condition 11(b) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, neither the Issuer nor the
Guarantor shall be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or other payment
which may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, presentation and surrender for payment, or
enforcement of any Note and all payments made by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor
shall be made subject to any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may be required to be
made, paid, withheld or deducted.

Taxation and expenses

Potential purchasers and sellers of Notes should be aware that they may be required to pay stamp
taxes or other documentary charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the country where
the Notes are transferred and/or any relevant assets are delivered.

Potential purchasers who are in any doubt as to their tax position should consult their own
independent tax advisers. In addition, potential purchasers should be aware that tax regulations and
their application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to time. Accordingly, it is not
possible to predict the precise tax treatment which will apply at any given time.

If Physical Delivery is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying in relation to any Notes, all
Delivery Expenses arising from the delivery of the Reference Item(s) in respect of such Note shall be
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for the account of the relevant Noteholder and no delivery of the Reference Item(s) shall be made
until all Delivery Expenses have been paid to the satisfaction of the Issuer by the relevant Noteholder.

Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange
rate risk, interest rate risk and credit risk:

The secondary market generally

Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market
does develop, it may not be liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or
at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed
secondary market. This is particularly the case for Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate,
currency or market risks, are designed for specific investment objectives or strategies or have been
structured to meet the investment requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of Notes
generally would have a more limited secondary market and more price volatility than conventional
debt securities. llliquidity may have a severely adverse effect on the market value of Notes.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes in the Specified Currency. This presents certain
risks relating to currency conversions if an investor’s financial activities are denominated principally
in a currency or currency unit (the “Investor’s Currency”) other than the Specified Currency. These
include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation
of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the Investor’s Currency) and the risk that authorities with
jurisdiction over the Investor’s Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation
in the value of the Investor’s Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease (1) the
Investor’s Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes, (2) the Investor’s Currency equivalent value of the
principal payable on the Notes and (3) the Investor’s Currency equivalent market value of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls
that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may receive less interest
or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.

Interest rate risks

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates may
adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Notes.

Market Value of Notes

The market value of an issue of Notes will be affected by a number of factors independent of the
creditworthiness of the Issuer, including, but not limited to:

(i) the value and volatility of the Reference Item(s);

(i) in the case of Credit Linked Notes, the creditworthiness of the Reference Entity or Reference
Entities;

(iii)  where the Reference Item(s) is/are equity securities, the dividend rate on the Reference Item(s)
and the financial results and prospects of the issuer of each Reference Item;
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(iv)  market interest and yield rates;

(v)  fluctuations in exchange rates;

(vi)  liquidity of the Notes or any Reference Item(s) in the secondary market;
(vii)  the time remaining to any redemption date or the maturity date;

(viii) economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting
capital markets generally and the stock exchange(s) on which any Reference Item may be
traded.

The price at which a Noteholder will be able to sell any Notes prior to maturity may be at a discount,
which could be substantial, to the market value of such Notes on the issue date, if, at such time, the
market price of the Reference Item(s) is below, equal to or not sufficiently above the market price of
the Reference Item(s) on the issue date. The historical market prices of any Reference Item should not
be taken as an indication of such Reference Item’s future performance during the term of any Note.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Notes. The ratings
may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional factors
discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Notes. A credit rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency
at any time.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or
review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to
determine whether and to what extent (1) Notes are legal investments for it, (2) Notes can be used as
collateral for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of
any Notes. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to
determine the appropriate treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

Prospective investors who consider purchasing any Notes should reach an investment decision only
after carefully considering the suitability of such Notes in light of their particular circumstances.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents, which have previously been published or are published simultaneously
with this Base Prospectus and have been filed with the CSSF, shall be incorporated in, and form part
of, this Base Prospectus:

(@  the audited non-consolidated annual financial statements of the Issuer for the financial years
ended 31st December, 2008 and 31st December, 2009, together, in each case, with the related
auditors’ report; and

(b)  the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Guarantor for the financial years
ended 31st December, 2008 and 31st December, 2009, together, in each case, with the related
auditors’ report.

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus a supplement may be prepared by the Issuer and
approved by the CSSF in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements
contained in any such supplement (or contained in a document incorporated by reference therein)
shall, to the extent applicable (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify
or supersede statements contained in this Base Prospectus or in a document which is incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so
modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be obtained from the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s website at www.bourse.lu and from the registered office of the Issuer.
This Base Prospectus will also be published on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s website at
www.bourse.lu.

The Issuer and the Guarantor will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or
inaccuracy relating to the information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting
the assessment of any Notes or any change in the condition of the Issuer which is material in the
context of the Programme or the issue of any Notes, prepare and publish a supplement to this Base
Prospectus or publish a new base prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent issue of
Notes. Furthermore, each of the Issuer and the Guarantor has undertaken to the Dealers in the
Programme Agreement (as defined in “Subscription and Sale”) that it will, in connection with the
listing of the Notes on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, so long as any Note remains outstanding and
listed on such exchange, in the event of any material adverse change in the financial condition of the
Issuer or the Guarantor which is not reflected in this Base Prospectus, prepare a further supplement
to this Base Prospectus or publish a new base prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent
issue of the Notes to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

If the terms of the Programme are modified or amended in a manner which would make this Base
Prospectus, as supplemented, inaccurate or misleading, a new base prospectus will be prepared.
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Specific items contained in “Documents Incorporated by Reference”
Documents

Audited non-consolidated annual financial statements of the Issuer for the financial
year ended 31st December, 2009

balance sheet

profit and loss account

cash flow statement

notes to the financial statements
auditors’ report

Audited non-consolidated annual financial statements of the Issuer for the financial
year ended 3 1st December, 2008

balance sheet

profit and loss account

cash flow statement

notes to the financial statements
auditors’ report

Audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Guarantor and its
consolidated subsidiaries for the financial year ended 3 1st December, 2009

balance sheet

profit and loss account

cash flow statement

notes to the financial statements
auditors’ report

Audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Guarantor and its
consolidated subsidiaries for the financial year ended 3 1st December, 2008

balance sheet

income statement

cash flow statement

notes to the financial statements

auditors’ report

Page Number

6-17
19-20

6-19

21-22

53-54
51-52
56-58
59-116
49-50

43

42
46-47
48-100

40-41

Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in

the table above is for informational purposes only.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Under the Programme, the Issuer may from time to time issue Notes denominated in any currency
(and having a minimum maturity of one month), subject as set out herein. The applicable terms of any
Notes will be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) prior to the issue of the Notes and
will be set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes endorsed on, or incorporated by reference
into, the Notes, as modified and supplemented by the applicable Final Terms attached to, or endorsed
on, such Notes, as more fully described under “Form of the Notes” below.

This Base Prospectus and any supplement will only be valid for listing Notes on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange in an aggregate nominal amount which, when added to the aggregate nominal
amount then outstanding of all Notes previously or simultaneously issued under the Programme, does
not exceed €40,000,000,000 or its equivalent in other currencies. For the purpose of calculating the
euro equivalent of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes issued under the Programme from time to
time:

(@)  the euro equivalent of Notes denominated in another Specified Currency (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms in relation to the relevant Notes, described under “Form of the Notes”)
shall be determined, at the discretion of the Issuer, either as of the date on which agreement is
reached for the issue of Notes or on the preceding day on which commercial banks and foreign
exchange markets are open for business in London, in each case on the basis of the spot rate
for the sale of the euro against the purchase of such Specified Currency in the London foreign
exchange market quoted by any leading international bank selected by the Issuer on the
relevant day of calculation;

(b)  the euro equivalent of Commodity Linked Notes, Credit Linked Notes, Currency Linked Notes,
Inflation Linked Notes, Dual Currency Notes, Equity Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes and
Partly Paid Notes (each as specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to the relevant
Notes, described under “Form of the Notes”) shall be calculated in the manner specified above
by reference to the original nominal amount on issue of such Notes (in the case of Partly Paid
Notes regardless of the subscription price paid); and

(c)  the euro equivalent of Zero Coupon Notes (as specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation
to the relevant Notes, described under “Form of the Notes”) and other Notes issued at a
discount or premium shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the net
proceeds received by the Issuer for the relevant issue.

Subordinated Notes and Subordinated Guarantee

The payment of all amounts in respect of the Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes has been
guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to the Guarantee, as more fully described in Terms and
Conditions of the Notes — Condition 2(b) (Status of the Notes and the Guarantee — Dated
Subordinated Guaranteed Notes) and in Form of the Guarantee — Status of Guarantee — Clause 7(B)
(Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes). Noteholders are advised that payments in respect of the
Dated Subordinated Guaranteed Notes will be made by the Guarantor pursuant to the Guarantee
only in accordance with the subordination provisions described therein.
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FORM OF THE NOTES

Each Tranche of Notes will be in bearer form and will be initially issued in the form of a Temporary
Global Note which will:

(i) if the Global Notes (as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes” below) are intended
to be issued in new global note (“NGN”) form, as stated in the applicable Final Terms, be
delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to the Common Safekeeper for
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg; and

(ii)  if the Global Notes are not intended to be issued in NGN Form, be delivered on or prior to the
original issue date of the Tranche to the Common Depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

Whilst any Note is represented by a Temporary Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if any)
and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined
below) will be made (against presentation of the Temporary Global Note if the Temporary Global Note
is not intended to be issued in NGN form) only to the extent that certification (in a form to be
provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such Note are not U.S. persons or
persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations,
has been received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like certification (based on the certifications it has received)
to the Agent. Any reference in this section “Form of the Notes” to Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any
additional or alternative clearance system approved by the Issuer and the Agent, and specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

On and after the date (the “Exchange Date”) which is the later of (i) 40 days after the Temporary
Global Note is issued and (ii) 40 days after the completion of the distribution of the relevant Tranche,
as determined and notified by the Agent (the “Distribution Compliance Period”), interests in such
Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as described therein
either for (i) interests in a Permanent Global Note of the same Series without receipts, interest coupons
or talons or (ii) for definitive Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest
coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and subject, in the case of
definitive Notes, to such notice period as is specified in the applicable Final Terms), in each case
against certification of beneficial ownership as described in the second sentence of the immediately
preceding paragraph unless such certification has already been given. The holder of a Temporary
Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on
or after the Exchange Date unless upon due certification, exchange of the Temporary Global Note for
interests in the Permanent Global Note or for definitive Notes, as the case may be, is improperly
withheld or refused. Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under “Terms and Conditions of
the Notes” below) the Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is
intended to form a single Series with an existing Tranche of Notes, the Notes of such Tranche shall be
assigned a common code and ISIN by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg which are different
from the common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other Tranche of the same Series until at
least the expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period applicable to the Notes of such Tranche.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Global Note will be
made through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender (as the
case may be) of the Permanent Global Note if the Permanent Global Note is not intended to be issued
in NGN form) without any requirement for certification. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable
Final Terms, a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part,
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for definitive Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached upon either
(i) not less than 60 days’ written notice from Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on
the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Global Note) to the Agent as described
therein or (ii) only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, “Exchange Event”
means that (A) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 13) has occurred and is continuing, (B)
the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for
business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise)
or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no
successor clearing system is available or (C) the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax
consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Permanent Global
Note in definitive form. The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 17 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event,
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in
such Permanent Global Note) may give notice to the Agent requesting exchange and, in the event of
the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (C) above, the Issuer may also give notice to the
Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 45 days after the dates of
receipt of the first relevant notice by the Agent. Global Notes and definitive Notes will be issued
pursuant to the Agency Agreement.

The following legend will appear on all Notes which have an original maturity of 365 days or more
and on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such Notes:

‘ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS
PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE

The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be
entitled to deduct any loss on Notes, receipts or interest coupons and will not be entitled to capital
gains treatment of any gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of
Notes, receipts or interest coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will only be transferable in accordance with the rules
and procedures for the times being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

A Note may be accelerated automatically by the holder thereof in certain circumstances described in
Condition 13. In such circumstances, where any Note is still represented by a Global Note (or any
part thereof) and a holder of such Note so represented and credited to his securities account with
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg gives notice that it wishes to accelerate such Note, unless
within a period of 15 days from the giving of such notice payment has been made in full of the
amount due in accordance with the terms of such Global Note, such Global Note will become void
at 8.00 pm (London time) on such day. At the same time, holders of interests in such Global Note
credited to their accounts with Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, will
become entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer on the basis of statements of account provided
by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, on and subject to the terms of a deed of covenant (the
“Deed of Covenant”) dated 18th September, 2008 executed by the Issuer.
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FORMS OF FINAL TERMS

The following is the form of Final Terms which will be completed in relation to each Tranche of Notes
with a denomination of less than €50,000 (or its equivalent in another currency) (References to
numbered Conditions are to the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Notes):

[Date]

KBC INTERNATIONALE FINANCIERINGSMAATSCHAPPIJ N.V.
(KBC IFIMA N.V.)

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
Guaranteed by KBC Bank NV
under the €40,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

[The Base Prospectus referred to below (as completed by these Final Terms) has been prepared on the
basis that, except as provided in sub-paragraph (ii) below, any offer of Notes in any Member State of
the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (2003/71/EC) (each, a
“Relevant Member State”) will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as
implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers
of the Notes. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer of the Notes may only do
s0:

(i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a
prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer; or

(i) in those Public Offer Jurisdictions mentioned in Paragraph 48 of Part A below, provided such
person is one of the persons mentioned in Paragraph 48 of Part A below and that such offer is
made during the Offer Period specified for such purpose therein.

Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of
Notes in any other circumstances]'.

[The Base Prospectus referred to below (as completed by these Final Terms) has been prepared on the
basis that any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has
implemented the Prospectus Directive (2003/71/EC) (each, a “Relevant Member State”) will be made
pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member
State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of the Notes. Accordingly any person
making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of the Notes may only do so in
circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus
pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of
the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer. Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer has
authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in any other circumstances]’.

1 Consider including this legend where a non-exempt offer of Notes is anticipated.
2 Consider including this legend where only an exempt offer of Notes is anticipated.
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PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
“Conditions”) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 14th July, 2010 which constitutes a base
prospectus for the purposes of Directive 2003/71/EC (the “Prospectus Directive”). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the
Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus [as so supplemented].
Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of a
combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. The Base Prospectus is available on the
website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at www.bourse.lu and the website of KBC at
www.kbc.com and copies may be obtained during normal business hours at the registered office of
the Issuer.

[The following alternative language applies if the first Tranche of an issue which is being increased was
issued under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
“Conditions”) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date]. This document constitutes the
Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the
“Prospectus Directive”) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated [current
date] which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect
of the Conditions which are extracted from the Base Prospectus dated [original date] and are attached
hereto. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the
combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectuses dated [current date] and [original date].
Copies of such Base Prospectuses are available on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
www.bourse.lu and the website of KBC at www.kbc.com and copies may be obtained during normal
business hours at the registered office of the Issuer.]

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should ensure that they understand the nature of the Notes and
the extent of their exposure to risk and that they consider the suitability of the Notes as an investment
in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Prospective purchasers should
conduct their own investigations and, in deciding whether or not to purchase Notes, prospective
purchasers should form their own views of the merits of an investment related to the [currencies,
shares, etc.] based upon such investigations and not in reliance upon any information given in this
document.

[Consider including the following paragraph]

[No person has been authorised to give any information or make any representation not contained in
or not consistent with these Final Terms, or any other information supplied in connection with the
Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorised by the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer.

By investing in the Notes each investor represents that:

(a)  Non-Reliance. It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions
to invest in the Notes and as to whether the investment in the Notes is appropriate or proper
for it based upon its own judgement and upon advice from such advisers as it has deemed
necessary. It is not relying on any communication (written or oral) of the Issuer, the Guarantor
or any Dealer as investment advice or as a recommendation to invest in the Notes, it being
understood that information and explanations related to the terms and conditions of the Notes
shall not be considered to be investment advice or a recommendation to invest in the Notes.
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(b)

(c)

No communication (written or oral) received from the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer shall
be deemed to be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of the investment in the

Notes.

Assessment and Understanding. It is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on
its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and understands and accepts the
terms and conditions and the risks of the investment in the Notes. It is also capable of assuming,
and assumes, the risks of the investment in the Notes.

Status of Parties. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor and any Dealer is acting as a fiduciary for
or adviser to it in respect of the investment in the Notes.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the
numbering should remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual
paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Final Terms.]

[When adding any other final terms or information consideration should be given as to whether such
terms or information constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum
denomination may need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1.

(i) Series Number:

(i) [Tranche Number:

Status of Notes:

Specified Currency or Currencies:

Aggregate Nominal Amount:

(i) [Series:]
(i) [Tranche:
Issue Price:

(i) Specified Denominations:

(i)  Calculation Amount:

[ ]
[ ]

(If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series,
including the date on which the Notes become fungible)]

[Senior  Guaranteed Notes/Dated Subordinated

Guaranteed Notes]

[ ]

[ 1]

[ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus
accrued interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

[ ]

(N.B. If an issue of Notes is (i) NOT admitted to trading
on an European Economic Area exchange; and (ii) only
offered in the European Economic Area in circumstances
where a prospectus is not required to be published under
the Prospectus Directive the €1,000 minimum
denomination is not required.)

[ ]
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10.

(i) [Issue Date:]

(i) [Interest Commencement
Date (if different from the
Issue Date):

(i) Maturity Date:

(i) Business Day Convention for
Maturity Date:

Interest Basis

Redemption/Payment Basis:

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified
Denomination.

If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the
highest common factor. Note: There must be a common
factor in the case of two or more Specified
Denominations.)

[specify date]/[Interest Payment Date falling in [or nearest
to] [specify month and yearl/[[ | Business Days after
the [final] Valuation Date, expected to be [ 1] [(the
“Scheduled Maturity Date”), subject as provided in
Condition 10(e) [, and] [Condition 10(f)] [and]
[Condition 10(g)] [and] [Condition 10(h)] (include for
Credit Linked Notes but include as applicable: see
below)]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[The Additional Business Centre(s) [is/are][ 1]
[[ ] per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[specify reference rate] + [ ] per cent. Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon]

[Index Linked Interest]

[Equity Linked Interest]

[Currency Linked Interest]

[Inflation Linked Interest]

[Commodity Linked Interest]

[non-interest bearing]

[specify other]

(further particulars specified below)
[Redemption at par]

[Index Linked Redemption]

[Equity Linked Redemption]
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11. Change of Interest Basis or
Redemption/Payment Basis:

12.  Put/Call Options:

13.  Tax Gross-Up:

14. Method of distribution:

[Credit Linked Redemption]
[Currency Linked Redemption]
[Inflation Linked Redemption]
[Commodity Linked Redemption]
[Dual Currency]

[Partly Paid]

[Instalment]

[specify other]

[Specify details of any provision for convertibility of
Notes into another Interest Basis or
Redemption/Payment Basis]

[Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

[Condition  11(a)  applicable]/[Condition  11(b)
applicable]

(N.B. Only one of Condition 11(a) and 11(b) should be
specified as applicable. If Condition 11(a) is specified as
applicable, Condition 5(b) will be applicable. If
Condition 11(b) is specified as applicable, Condition
5(b) will not be applicable)

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15.  Fixed Rate Note Provisions

(i) Rate[s] of Interest:

(i) Interest Period End Date(s):

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum

[payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrear] (if payable other than annually, consider
amending Condition 3).

[ ] in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Date

(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of long or
short coupons)
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Date(s):

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Fixed Coupon Amount][s]:

Broken Amount][s]:
(Applicable to Notes in
definitive form.)

Day Count Fraction:

Determination Date(s):

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[[ 1in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Datel]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[ ]

(Applicable to Notes in definitive form.) [ ] per
Calculation Amount

[ ] per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest
Payment Date falling [in/on] [ ]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual (ICMA)

Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[ ]in each year

[Insert regular Interest Period End Dates, ignoring issue
date or maturity date in the case of a long or short first or
last couponl]

(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of regular
Interest Period End Dates which are not of equal
duration) (NB: Only relevant where Fixed Day Count
Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA))
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16.

Other terms relating to the method

of calculating interest for Fixed Rate

Notes:

Floating Rate Note Provisions

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Manner in which the Rate(s)
of Interest and Interest
Amount(s) is/are to be
determined:

Party responsible for
calculating the Rate(s) of
Interest and Interest
Amount(s) (if not the
Guarantor):

Screen Rate Determination:

- Reference Rate:

- Interest Determination
Date(s):

- Relevant Screen Page:

[None/give details]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[
|

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/ Modified Following Business Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day Convention/specify
other/Not Applicable]

[[ 1in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Datel/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

Business Day Convention for Interest Payment Dates:
[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[ ]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify
other (give details)]

[ 1 (Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although
additional information is required if other — including any
amendment to the fall back provisions in the Agency
Agreement)

[ ]

(Second day on which commercial banks are open for
general business (including dealings in foreign exchange
and foreign currency deposits) in London prior to the
start of each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than euro
LIBOR or Sterling LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period
if Sterling LIBOR and the second day on which the
TARGET2 System is open prior to the start of each
Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

[ ]
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17.

(ix)

(Xiv)

ISDA Determination:

- Floating Rate Option:
- Designated Maturity:
- Reset Date:
Margin(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Fall back provisions,
rounding provisions,
denominator and any other
terms relating to the method
of calculating interest on
Floating Rate Notes, if
different from those set out in
the Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

(i)

Accrual Yield:

Reference Price:

(in the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBOROT,
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate)

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[+/~1 [ 1 per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum
[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/365 (Sterling)
Actual/360
30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis
30E/360 (ISDA)
11
Other]
(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ]
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18.

(i) Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable:

(iv)  Day Count Fraction in
relation to Early Redemption
Amounts and late payment:

Index Linked Interest Note
Provisions

() Day Count Fraction in
relation to Early Redemption
Amounts and late payment:

(i) Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of indices or a single
index, the identity of the
relevant Index/Indices and
details of the relevant
sponsors:

(iii)  Calculation Agent
responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and
Interest Amount(s) and for
making calculations pursuant
to Condition 7:

(iv)  Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period Dates:

(v)  Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

(vi)  Interest Payment Dates:

(vii)  Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

(viii) Additional Business Centre(s):
(ix)  Minimum Rate of Interest:

(x)  Maximum Rate of Interest:

[Conditions 5(e)(iii) and 5(k) apply/specify other]
(Consider applicable day count fraction if not U.S. dollar
denominated)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

Formula for calculating interest rate including provisions
for determining Coupon where calculation by reference
to Index/Indices is impossible or impracticable and other
back up provisions: [give or annex details]

[Basket of Indices/Single Index]
[(Give or annex details)]
[The Index is a Designated Multi-Exchange Index.]

(N.B. Designated Multi-Exchange Index only applies in
relation to the Euro Stoxx Index unless otherwise
specifically agreed)

[Give name and address)]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified  Following  Business  Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify
other/Not Applicable]

[[ ] in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Datel/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[ ]
[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum
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19.

(xi)  Day Count Fraction:

(xii)  Exchange(s):

(xiii) Related Exchange(s):
(xiv) Valuation Date(s):
(xv)  Valuation Time:

(xvi) Strike Price:

(xvii) Multiplier for each Index
comprising the basket:

(xviii) Correction of Index Levels:

(xix) Correction Cut-Off Date:
(xx) Trade Date:

(xxi) ~ Other terms or special
conditions:

Equity Linked Interest Note
Provisions

(i) Other terms or special
conditions:

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[ ]

[ /All Exchanges]

[ ]

[Condition 7(c) applies/other]

[ ]

[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Index Levels [applies/does not apply and
the Reference Price shall be calculated without regard to
any subsequently published correction].

(If Correction of Index Levels does not apply, delete the
following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date.
[ ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

Formula for calculating interest rate including back up
provisions: [Give or annex details]
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Whether the Notes relate to a [Basket of Underlying Equities/Single Underlying Equity]

basket of equity securities or
a single equity security, and
the identity of the relevant
issuer(s) of the Underlying
Equity/Equities):

Calculation Agent
responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and
Interest Amount(s) and for
making calculations pursuant
to Condition 8:

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

[Give or annex details]

[Give name and address]

—_—
fa—

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified  Following  Business  Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify
other/Not Applicable]

[[ 1 in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Datel/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual (ICMA)

Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

58



20.

(xii)  Exchange(s):

Related Exchange(s):

(xv)  De-listing, Merger Event,
Nationalisation and
Insolvency:

(xvi) Tender Offer:
(xvii) Valuation Date(s):
(xviii) Valuation Time:
(xix) Strike Price:
(xx) Exchange Rate:

(xxi)  Multiplier for each

Underlying Equity

comprising the basket (which

is subject to adjustment as
set out in Condition 8(b)):

(xxii) Correction of Share Prices:

(xxiii) Correction Cut-Off Date:
(xxiv) Trade Date:

(xxv) Other terms or special
conditions:

Commodity Linked Interest Note
Provisions

() Relevant Commodity or
Commodities:

(i) Formula for calculating
interest rate including back
up provisions:

Potential Adjustment Events:

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)
[ ]

[ /All Exchanges]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[ ]

[Condition 8(e) applies/other]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Insert details]

[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Share Prices [applies/does not apply and
the Reference Price shall be calculated without regard to
any subsequently published correction].

(If Correction of Share Prices does not apply, delete the
following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date.
[ ]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[ 1 [which is a Bullion Commodity]

[Give or annex details]

59



(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(Xiv)

Calculation Agent
responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and
Interest Amount(s):

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Pricing Date(s):

Commodity Business Day
Convention:

Common Pricing:

[Give name and address]

—_—
[——

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified  Following  Business  Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day Convention/specify
other/Not Applicable]

[[ 1in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Date]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[ ]

[Following/ Modified Following/Nearest/Preceding]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
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(xv) Commodity Business Day:
(xvi) Commodity Reference Price:

(xvii) Specified Price:

(xviii) Delivery Date:

(xix) Unit:
(xx)  Price Source:
(xxi) Exchange(s):

(xxii) Market Disruption Event(s):

(xxiii) Disruption Fallback(s):

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Notes linked to a
basket of Commodities)

[Specify/The definition in Condition 6 applies]
[ ]

[high pricelllow pricel[average of high and low
prices][closing price][opening price][bid price][asked
price][average of bid and asked prices][settlement
price][official settlement price][official pricel[morning
fixing] [afternoon fixing][spot price][other] [insert time, if
applicable]

[date][month and  year][[First/Second/Third/other]
Nearby Month][specify method]

[ ]
[ ]
The relevant Exchangels] [is/are] [ 1.

[The following Market Disruption Events apply to the
Notes:

[Price Source Disruption]

[Trading  Disruption:  specify  any  additional
futures/options

contract commodity]

[Disappearance of Commodity Reference Price]
[Material Change in Formula]

[Material Change in Content]

[Tax Disruption]]

[Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Market Disruption Events
specified in that Condition will apply)

[The following Disruption Fallbacks apply to the Notes
(in the following order):

[Fallback Reference Dealers: specify alternate
Commodity

Reference Price]
[Fallback Reference Price]
[Cancellation]

[Postponement]
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21.

(xxiv) Reference Dealers:

(xxv) Maximum Days of Disruption:

(xxvi) Strike Price:

(xxvii) Correction of Commaodity

Prices:

(xxviii) Correction Cut-Off Date:

(xxix) Trade Date:

(xxx) Other terms or special

conditions:

Currency Linked Interest Note
Provisions

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Relevant Currency:

Formula for calculating
interest rate including back
up provisions:

Calculation Agent
responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and
Interest Amount(s):

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

[Calculation Agent Determination]
[Delayed Publication and Announcement]
[specify other]]

[Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Disruption Fallbacks
specified in that Condition will apply)

[Specify four dealers]
[ ]

(If no Maximum Days of Disruption are stated, Maximum
Days of Disruption will be equal to five)

[ ]

Correction of Commodity Prices [applies/does not apply
and the Relevant Price shall be calculated without regard
to any subsequently published correction].

(If Correction of Commodity Prices does not apply, delete
the following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date.
[ ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ]

[Give or annex details]

[Give name and address]

—
[——

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified  Following  Business  Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day Convention/specify
other/Not Applicable]
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22.

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Inflation Linked Interest Note
Provisions

(i)

(iii)

Relevant inflation index or
indices:

Formula for calculating
interest rate including back
up provisions:

Calculation Agent
responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and
Interest Amount(s):

[[ 1in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Date]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ]

[Give or annex details)

[Give name and address]
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23.

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Dual Currency Note Provisions

Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified  Following  Business  Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day Convention/specify
other/Not Applicable]

[[ 1in each year, starting on [ 1, up to and including
the Maturity Datel]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[give or annex details]
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(i) Calculation Agent, if any,
responsible for calculating
the principal and/or interest
due:

(iii)  Provisions applicable where
calculation by reference to
Rate of Exchange impossible
or impracticable:

(iv)  Person at whose option
Specified Currency(ies) is/are
payable:

24.  Additional Disruption Events

(applicable to Index Linked Interest
Notes and Equity Linked Interest
Notes only):

[Give name and address]

[Need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provision]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Additional Disruption Events are only applicable to
certain types of Index Linked Interest Notes or Equity
Linked Interest Notes]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

Change in Law

Hedging Disruption

[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Insolvency Filing]

(NB: Only applicable in the case of Equity Linked Interest
Notes)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each Underlying Equity/security] is [ ].

(NB: Only applicable if Loss of Stock Borrow is
applicable)

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each Underlying Equity/security] is [ 1.

(NB: Only applicable if Increased Cost of Stock Borrow is
applicable)

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

25.  lssuer Call

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)
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26.

27.

(i)  Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Business Day Convention for
Optional Redemption Dates:

(iii)  Optional Redemption
Amount and method, if any,
of calculation of such
amount:

(iv)  If redeemable in part:

(@ Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(b)  Maximum Redemption
Amount:

(V) Notice period (if other than
as set out in the Conditions):

Investor Put

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Business Day Convention for
Optional Redemption Dates:

(i) Optional Redemption
Amount and method, if any,
of calculation of such
amount:

(iv)  Notice period (if other than
as set out in the Conditions):

Final Redemption Amount:

[ ]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[The Additional Business Centre(s) [is/are][ 1]

[ 1 per Calculation Amount

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding Business
Day Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[The Additional Business Centre(s) [is/are][ 1]

[ ] per Calculation Amount

[ ]

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to those
provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and
custodians, as well as any other notice requirements
which may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and
the Agent)

[[ 1 per Calculation Amount/ specify other/see
Appendix]
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(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100
per cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be
Derivative Securities* for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive and the requirements of Annex XII
to the Prospectus Directive Regulation will apply.)
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28.

29.

30.

Early Redemption Amount:

(Early Redemption Amount payable
on redemption for taxation reasons
or on event of default or on an
illegality (or, in the case of
Commodity Linked Notes, if the
circumstances set out in Condition
6(c)(iii) have arisen or, in the case
of Index Linked Notes, following
an Index Adjustment Event in
accordance with Condition
7(b)(ii)(b) or, in the case of Equity
Linked Notes, following a De-
listing and/or Merger Event and/or
Nationalisation and/or Insolvency
and/or Tender Offer in accordance
with Condition 8(b)(ii)(b) or, in the
case of Index Linked Notes or
Equity Linked Notes, following an
Additional Disruption Event (if
applicable) or, in the case of Credit
Linked Notes, following a Merger
Event, and/or the method of
calculating the same (required if
Early Redemption Amount
different from that set out in
Condition 5(e)):

Currency Linked Redemption Notes:

(i) Relevant Currency:

(i) Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations:

(iii)  Relevant provisions for
determining amount of
principal payable:

Inflation Linked Redemption Notes:

[[ 1 per Calculation Amount/specify other/see
Appendix]

[(Consider including the wording below for Commodity
Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes, Equity Linked Notes or
Credit Linked Notes)]

With respect to each Calculation Amount, such
amount(s) determined by the Calculation Agent which
shall represent the fair market value of such Calculation
Amount on the date of redemption, including accrued
interest (if any), adjusted to account fully for any losses,
expenses and costs to the Issuer (or any of its affiliates) of
unwinding any underlying or related hedging and
funding arrangements, all as determined by the
Calculation Agent. For the purposes hereof:

(i) the references to “together (if appropriate) with
interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of
redemption” shall be deemed to be deleted from
each of Condition 5(b) and Condition 5(h); and

(ii) the references to “together with accrued interest
thereon to the date of repayment” shall be deemed to
be deleted from Condition 13.]

[“Condition 5(e) applies” should be inserted for all other
types of Notes]

[N.B. This section does not apply to any Notes with an
automatic  redemption  feature. Any automatic
redemption feature should be set out in the relevant
“Redemption Amount” paragraph of the applicable Final
Terms or in an Annex thereto.]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ]

[Give name and address]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
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31.

(i)

(iii)

Index

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

Relevant inflation index or
indices:

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations:

Relevant provisions for
determining amount of
principal payable:

Linked Redemption Notes:

Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of indices or a single
index, the identity of the
relevant Index/Indices and
details of the relevant
Sponsors:

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations pursuant to
Condition 7:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange(s):

Redemption Amount: [if Not
Applicable:

Valuation Date:
Valuation Time:
Strike Price:

Multiplier for each Index
comprising the basket:

Correction of Index Levels:

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ]

[Give name and address]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[Basket of Indices/Single Index]
[(Cive or annex details)]
[The Index is a Designated Multi-Exchange Index]

(N.B. Designated Multi-Exchange Index only applies in
relation to the Euro Stoxx Index unless otherwise
specifically agreed)

[Give name and address]

[ ]
[ /All Exchanges]
[Express per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]

[Call Index Linked Redemption Notes/Put Index Linked
Redemption Notes]]

[ ]
[Condition 7(c) applies/other]

[ ]
[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Index Levels [applies/does not apply and
the Reference Price shall be calculated without regard to
any subsequently published correction].
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32.

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

Correction Cut-Off Date:
Trade Date:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Equity Linked Redemption Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)
(xi)

(xii)

Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of equity securities or
a single equity security, and
the identity of the relevant
issuer(s) of the Underlying
Equity/Equities):

Whether redemption of the
Notes will be by (a) Cash
Settlement or (b) Physical
Delivery or (c) Cash
Settlement and/or Physical
Delivery:

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations pursuant to
Condition 8:

Exchange:
Related Exchange(s):
Potential Adjustment Events:

De-listing, Merger Event,
Nationalisation and
Insolvency:

Tender Offer:

Redemption Amount: [If Not
Applicable:

Valuation Date:
Valuation Time:

Strike Price:

(If Correction of Index Levels does not apply, delete the
following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to the Maturity Date.
[ ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[Basket of Underlying Equities/Single Underlying Equity]

[(Give or annex details)]

[Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery/Cash Settlement
and/or Physical Delivery]

(If Cash Settlement and/or Physical Delivery specified,
specify details for determining in what circumstances
Cash Settlement or Physical Delivery will apply)

[Give name and address]

[ ]

[ /All Exchanges]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Express per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]

[Call Equity Linked Redemption Notes/Put Equity Linked
Redemption Notes]]

[ ]
[Condition 8(e) applies/other]

[ ]
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33.

(xiii) Exchange Rate:

(xiv)  Multiplier for each
Underlying Equity
comprising the basket (which
is subject to adjustment as
set out in Condition 8(b)):

(xvi) Correction Cut-Off Date:
(xvii) Trade Date:

(xviii) Relevant Assets:

(xix) Asset Amount:

(xx) Cut-Off Date:

(xxi) Redemption Delivery
provisions for Asset Amount
(including details of who is to
make such delivery):

(xxii) Failure to deliver due to
iquidity:

(xxiii) Other terms or special
conditions:

Additional Disruption Events
(applicable to Index Linked
Redemption Notes and Equity
Linked Redemption Notes only):

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Insert details]
[Insert details/Not Applicable]

(xv) Correction of Share Prices: Correction of Share
Prices [applies/does not apply and the Reference Price
shall be calculated without regard to any subsequently
published correction].

(If Correction of Share Prices does not apply, delete the
following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to the Maturity Date.
[ ]

[ ]

[Express per Calculation Amount]

[[ ] calendar days after the Valuation Datel/[other]]
[N.B. in any event BEFORE the Maturity Date]

[ 1 [The Delivery Agentis [ 1]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(NB: Only applicable to certain types of Equity Linked
Redemption Notes).

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Additional Disruption Events are only applicable to
certain types of Index Linked Redemption Notes or
Equity Linked Redemption Notes]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

Change in Law

Hedging Disruption

[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]

[Insolvency Filing]
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34.

Credit Linked Notes:

[NB: Consider whether definitions
included in Conditions are up to
date]

General
(i) Redemption Amount:

(i) Settlement Method:

(iii)  Trade Date:

(iv)  Scheduled Termination Date:

(v} Calculation Agent responsible
for making calculations and
determinations pursuant to
Condition 10:

(vi)  Calculation Agent City:
Credit Provisions
(vii) Reference Entity(ies):

(viii) Reference Obligation(s):

(NB: Only applicable in the case of Equity Linked
Redemption Notes)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each Underlying Equity/security] is [ 1.

(NB: Only applicable if Loss of Stock Borrow is
applicable)

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each Underlying Equity/security] is [ ].

(NB: Only applicable if Increased Cost of Stock Borrow is
applicable)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[Express per Calculation Amount]

[Auction Settlement/Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery]
[If Auction Settlement:

The provisions of Condition 10(b) shall apply]

[If Cash Settlement:

The provisions of Condition 10(c) shall apply]

[If Physical Delivery:

The Provisions of Condition 10(d) shall apply]

[ ]

[The day falling [five] Business Days prior to the
Scheduled Maturity Date/specify other]

[Give name and address]
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[The obligation[s] identified as follows:

Primary Obligor:
Guarantor:
Maturity:
Coupon:
CUSIP/ISIN:

(ix)  All Guarantees:

(x) Credit Events:

Default Requirement:

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ 1]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

— Provisions relating to Qualifying Guarantee and
Underlying ~ Obligation: ~ Condition 10(q)
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Bankruptcy]
[Failure to Pay]

[Grace Period Extension (Condition 10(f))
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[If Applicable:

Grace Period: [ 1]
[Obligation Acceleration]
[Obligation Default]
[Repudiation/Moratorium]

[Maturity ~ Date  Extension:  Condition  10(h):
[Applicable/Not Applicable]]

[Restructuring]

— Provisions relating to Restructuring Credit Event:
Condition 10(n) [Applicable/Not Applicable]

— Provisions relating to Multiple Holder Obligation:
Condition 10(o) [Applicable/Not Applicable]

— [Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Fully
Transferable Obligation [Applicable/Not
Applicable]]

— [Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation and
Conditionally Transferable Obligation
[Applicable/Not Applicable]]

[other]

[ ]
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Payment Requirement:

(xi)  Conditions to Settlement:

(xii) Obligation(s):

Obligation Category [select one
onlyl:

Obligation Characteristics [select
all of which applyl:

Additional Obligation(s):

(xiii) ~ Provisions relating to
Monoline Insurer to
Reference Entity:

(xiv) Excluded Obligation(s):

(xv)  Accrual of Interest upon
Credit Event:

[ ]

Notice of Publicly Available Information [Applicable/Not
Applicable]

[If Applicable:
Public Source(s): [ 1]

(If other than in the definition in Condition 10(j).)
Specified Number: [ 1]

(If none specified, then it is deemed to be two.)

[Payment] [Borrowed Money]

[Reference Obligations Only]

[Bond]

[Loan]

[Bond or Loan]

[Not Subordinated]

[Specified Currency:

[specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies]
[Not Sovereign Lender]

[Not Domestic Currency:]

[Domestic Currency means: [specify currencyl]
[Not Domestic Law]

[Listed]

[Not Domestic Issuance]

[ ]

Condition 10(p) [Applicable/Not Applicable]

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(xvi) Merger Event: Condition 10(l): [Applicable/Not Applicable]
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If Applicable: Merger Event
Redemption Date:

(xvii) [Unwind Costs:

Terms relating to Cash Settlement

(xviii) Credit Event Redemption
Amount:

(xix) ~ Credit Event Redemption
Date:

(xx)  Valuation Date:

(xxi) Valuation Time:
(xxii) Quotation Method:

(xxiii) Quotation Amount:

(xxiv) [Minimum Quotation Amount:

(xxv) Quotation Dealers:
(xxvi) Quotations:

(xxvii) Valuation Method:

(xxviii) Other terms or special
conditions:

(xxix) Physical Settlement Period:

(xxx) Asset Amount:

(xxxi) Settlement Currency:

(xxxii) Deliverable Obligations:

Deliverable Obligation Category
[select one only]:

[Standard Unwind Costs/other/Not Applicable]

[Express per Calculation Amount]

[ ] Business Days

[Single Valuation Date:
[ ] Business Days]
[Multiple Valuation Dates:

[ ] Business Days; and each [
thereafter.

Number of Valuation Dates: [ 1]

[ ]

[Bid/Offer/Mid-market]

[[ ]/Representative Amount]

[ 1]

[ ]

[Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued Interest]
[Market/Highest]

[Average Market/Highest/Average Highest]
[Blended Market/Blended Highest]

[Average Blended Market/Average Blended Highest]
[ ]

Terms relating to Physical Delivery

[ ] Business Days

[Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued Interest]

[ ]

[Payment]

[Borrowed Money]
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[Reference Obligations Only]
[Bond]
[Loan]

[Bond or Loan]

Deliverable Obligation [Not Subordinated] [Specified Currency:
Characteristi lect all of which
ap:Ir;]C' eristics [sefect all of whic [specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies]

[Not Sovereign Lender]

[Not Domestic Currency]

[Domestic Currency means: [specify currencyl]
[Not Domestic Law]

[Listed]

[Not Contingent]

[Not Domestic Issuance]

[Assignable Loan]

[Consent Required Loan]

[Direct Loan Participation]

[Qualifying Participation Seller: — insert details]
[Transferable]

[Maximum Maturity: [ 1]

[Accelerated or Matured]

[Not Bearer]
Additional Deliverable Obligation(s): [ ]
(xxxiii) Excluded Deliverable [ ]
Obligation(s):
(xxxiv) Indicative Quotations: [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(xxxv) Cut-Off Date: [ ]

(xxxvi) Delivery provisions for Asset [ 1
Amount (including details of
who is to make such
delivery) if different from
Terms and Conditions:

(xxxvii) Other terms or special [ ]
conditions:
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35.

Additional terms relating to Auction
Settlement:

(xxxviii) Fallback Settlement
Method:

(xxxix)Additional Business Centre(s):

(xxxx) Business Day Convention for
purposes of Condition 10:

(xxxxi) Succession Event Backstop
Date subject to adjustment in
accordance with Business
Day Convention:

(xxxxii) Limitation Dates subject to
adjustment in accordance
with Business Day
Convention:

Commodity Linked Redemption
Notes:

(i) Relevant Commodity or
Commodities:

(i) Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations:

(iii)  Relevant provisions for
determining amount of
principal payable:

(iv)  Redemption Amount:
(v) Pricing Date(s):

(vi)  Commodity Business Day
Convention:

(vii)  Common Pricing:

(viii) Commodity Business Day:

(ix)  Commodity Reference Price:

[Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery]

[If Physical Delivery:

The provisions of Condition 10(i) shall apply]
[ ]

[Following/Modified Following/Preceding]

[Yes/No]

[Yes/No]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[ 1 [which is a Bullion Commodity]

[Give name and address]

[Express per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]

[ ]
[Following/ Modified Following/Nearest/Preceding]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Notes linked to a
basket of Commodities)

[Specify/The definition in Condition 6 applies]
[ ]
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(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Specified Price:

Delivery Date:

Unit:
Price Source:
Exchange(s):

Market Disruption Event(s):

Disruption Fallback(s):

[high pricel[low pricel[average of high and low
prices][closing price][opening price][bid price][asked
price][average of bid and asked prices][settlement
price][official settlement price][official pricel[morning
fixing] [afternoon fixing][spot price][other] [insert time, if
applicable]

[date][month and  year][[First/Second/Third/other]
Nearby Month][specify method)]

[ ]
[ ]
The relevant Exchangels] [is/are] [ 1.

[The following Market Disruption Events apply to the
Notes:

[Price Source Disruption]

[Trading  Disruption:  specify —any  additional
futures/options

contract commodity]
[Disappearance of Commodity Reference Price]

[Material Change in Formula] [Material Change in
Content] [Tax Disruption]] [Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Market Disruption Events
specified in that Condition will apply)

[The following Disruption Fallbacks apply to the Notes
(in the following order):

[Fallback Reference Dealers: specify alternate
Commodity

Reference Price]

[Fallback Reference Price]

[Cancellation]

[Postponement]

[Calculation Agent Determination]
[Delayed Publication and Announcement]
[specify other]]

[Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Disruption Fallbacks
specified in that Condition will apply)
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(xvii) Reference Dealers:

(xviii) Maximum Days of Disruption:

(xix) Strike Price:

(xx)  Correction of Commodity
Prices:

(xxi) Correction Cut-Off Date:
(xxii) Trade Date:

(xxiii) Other terms and special
conditions:

[Specify four dealers]
[ ]

(If no Maximum Days of Disruption are stated, Maximum
Days of Disruption will be equal to five)

[ ]

Correction of Commodity Prices [applies/does not apply
and the Relevant Price shall be calculated without regard
to any subsequently published correction].

(If Correction of Commodity Prices does not apply, delete
the following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to the Maturity Date.
[ ]
[ ]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

36.

37.

38.

Form of Notes:

(i) Form:

(i) New Global Note:

Additional Financial Centre(s) or
other special provisions relating to
Payment Days:

Talons for future Coupons or
Receipts to be attached to
Definitive Notes (and dates on
which such Talons mature):

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent
Global Note which is exchangeable for definitive Notes
[on 60 days’ notice given at any time/only upon an
Exchange Event]]

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for definitive
Notes upon specified number of days notice]

Notes shall not be physically delivered in Belgium,
except to a clearing system, a depositary or other
institution for the purpose of their immobilisation in
accordance with article 4 of the Belgian Law of 14th
December, 2005.

[Yes][No]

[Not Applicable/give details] (Note that this item relates
to the place of payment and not “Business Days” for the
purposes of the Maturity Date, Interest Payment Dates,
Interest Period End Dates and Optional Redemption
Dates)

[Yes/No (If yes, give details)]
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39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Details relating to Partly Paid Notes:
amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date
on which each payment is to be
made and consequences (if any) of
failure to pay, including any right of
the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and
interest due on late payment:

Details relating to Instalment Notes:
(i) Instalment Amount(s):
(ii)  Instalment Date(s):

If the Specified Currency is the
currency of a member state of the
European Union, whether a
Redenomination Clause is to be
included:

Consolidation provisions:

Other final terms:

DISTRIBUTION

44,

45.

46.
47.

() If syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

(i) Date of Subscription
Agreement:

(iii) ~ Stabilising Manager (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and
address of relevant Dealer:

Total commission and concession:

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

[Not Applicable/give details]

(NB: a new form of Temporary Global Note and/or
Permanent Global Note may be required for Partly Paid
issues)

[Not Applicable/give details]
[Not Applicable/give details]
[Redenomination [not] applicable]

(If Redenomination is applicable, specify the terms of the
Redenomination in an Appendix to the Final Terms)

[Not Applicable/The provisions annexed to these Final
Terms apply]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(When adding any other final terms consideration should
be given as to whether such terms constitute “significant
new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of
the Prospectus Directive)

[Not Applicable/give names and addresses and
underwriting commitments]

(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis and
names and addresses of the entities agreeing to place the
issue without a firm commitment or on a “best efforts”
basis if such entities are not the same as the Managers.)

[ ]

[Not Applicable/give namel]
[Not Applicable/give name and address]

[ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

[Reg. S Compliance Category; TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA
not applicable]
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48.  Non-exempt Offer: [Not Applicable] [An offer of the Notes may be made by
the Managers [and [specify names [and addresses] of
other financial intermediaries/placers making non-
exempt offers, to the extent known OR consider a generic
description of other parties involved in non-exempt offers
(e.g. “other parties authorised by the Managers”) or (if
relevant) note that other parties may make non-exempt
offers in the Public Offer Jurisdictions during the Offer
Period, if not knownl]] (together with the Managers, the
“Financial Intermediaries”) other than pursuant to Article
3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in [specify relevant
Member State(s) — which must be jurisdictions where the
Base Prospectus and any supplements have been
passported (in addition to the jurisdiction where
approved and published)] (“Public Offer Jurisdictions”)
during the period from [specify date] until [specify date
or a formula such as “the Issue Date” or “the date which
falls [ ] Business Days thereafter”] (“Offer Period”). See
further Paragraph 12 of Part B below.

49. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]

PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required for issue [and] [public offer in the Public Offer
Jurisdictions] [and] [admission to trading on [specify relevant regulated market (for example the
Bourse de Luxembourg)] of the Notes described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Euro
Medium Term Note Programme of KBC Internationale Financieringsmaatschappij N.V. (KBC IFIMA
N.V.).]

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

[[ ] (the “Reference Information”) has been extracted from [ ]. The Issuer confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain
from information published by [ 1, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced

information inaccurate or misleading].

Signed on behalf of the Issuer: Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:
By: By:
Duly authorised Duly authorised
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1.

2.

PART B — OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO [Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its

TRADING: behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on
[specify relevant regulated market (for example the
Bourse de Luxembourg)] with effect from [ 1.]
[Application is expected to be made by the Issuer
(or on its behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to
trading on [specify relevant regulated market (for
example the Bourse de Luxembourg)] with effect
from [ ].] [Not Applicable.]

RATINGS: The Notes to be issued have not been rated. The
rating of the Guarantor is:
[S&P:[]]
[Moody’s: [ 1]
[Fitch: [ 1]
[[Other]: [ 1]

[Need to include here a brief explanation of the
meaning of the ratings if this has previously been
published by the rating provider.]

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE:

[Save for any fees payable to the [Dealers/Managers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. — Amend as appropriate
if there are other interests]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES:
(i) [Reasons for the offer: [1]

(See “Use of Proceeds” wording in Base
Prospectus — if reasons for offer different from
making profit and/or hedging certain risks will
need to include those reasons here.)

(i) [Estimated net proceeds: [n

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use
will need to split out and present in order of
priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all
proposed uses state amount and sources of other
funding.)
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(iii)  [Estimated total expenses: [ 1 [Expenses are required to be broken down into
each principal intended “use” and presented in
order of priority of such “uses”]

(N.B.: If the Notes are Derivative Securities* to
which Annex Xl of the Prospectus Directive
Regulation applies (i) above is required where the
reasons for the offer are different from making
profit and/or hedging certain risks regardless of the
minimum denomination of the securities and
where this is the case disclosure of net proceeds
and total expenses at (ii) and (iii) above are also
required.)

YIELD: (Fixed Rate Notes only)
Indication of yield: []

[Calculated as [include details of method of
calculation in summary form] on the Issue Date.]

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the
basis of the Issue Price. It is not an indication of
future yield.

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES: (Floating Rate Notes only)
Details of historic [LIBOR/EURIBOR/other] rates can be obtained from [Reuters].]

PERFORMANCE OF [INDEX/BASKET OF INDICES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE
OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE [INDEX/BASKET OF INDICESI: (Index-Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula can be obtained
on linsert relevant Bloomberg pagel.

[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is
affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

[Need to include the name of [the/each] Index and a description if composed by the Issuer and
if [the/each] Index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the
information about [the/each] Index can be obtained.]

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

PERFORMANCE OF [THE EQUITY/BASKET OF EQUITIES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON

VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING [THE EQUITY/BASKET OF EQUITIES]] (Equity Linked Notes only)
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10.

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the equity/basket of equities can be
obtained on [insert relevant Bloomberg pagel.

[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is
affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

[Need to include the name of [the/each] issuer of the [equity/equities in the basket] and the
ISIN or other identification codel]

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XlI
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

PERFORMANCE OF [RATE[S] OF EXCHANGE/FORMULA/CURRENCIES/ INFLATION INDEX
OR INDICES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED
RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE [RATE[S] OF EXCHANGE/
FORMULA/CURRENCIES/INFLATION INDEX OR INDICES]] (Currency Linked Notes,
Inflation Linked Notes and Notes linked to any other underlying only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the relevant
rates/formula/currencies/inflation index or indices can be obtained on [insert relevant
Bloomberg pagel.

[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is
affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

PERFORMANCE OF [THE COMMODITY/BASKET OF COMMODITIES], EXPLANATION OF
EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE COMMODITY/BASKET OF COMMODITIES]]
(Commodity Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the relevant commodity/basket of
commodities can be obtained on [insert relevant Bloomberg page].

[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is
affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

[Need to include [the/each] commodity identification code (if any)]

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XlI
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]
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11.

12.

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE REFERENCE ENTITY, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING THE REFERENCE ENTITY] (Credit Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the Reference Entity can be obtained
on linsert relevant Bloomberg pagel.

[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is
affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

[TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER:] (Delete in the case of an exempt offer)

Offer Price: [Issue Pricel[specify]

[Conditions to which the offer is subject:] ~ [Not applicable/give details]
[Description of the application process]:  [Not applicable/give details]
[Details of the minimum and/or [Not applicable/give details]

maximum amount of application]:

[Description of possibility to reduce :  [Not applicable/give details]
subscriptions and manner for
refunding excess amount paid by

applicants]

[Details of the method and time limits [Not applicable/give details]
for paying up and delivering the

Notes:]

[Manner in and date on which results [Not applicable/give details]

of the offer are to be made public:]

[Procedure for exercise of any right of [Not applicable/give details]
pre-emption, negotiability of

subscription rights and treatment of

subscription rights not exercised:]

[Categories of potential investors to [Not applicable/give details]
which the Notes are offered and

whether tranche(s) have been

reserved for certain countries:]
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13.

[Process for notification to applicants
of the amount allotted and the
indication whether dealing may begin
before notification is made:]

[Amount of any expenses and taxes
specifically charged to the subscriber
or purchaser:]

[Name(s) and addresses, to the extent
known to the Issuer, of the placers in
the various countries where the offer
takes place:]

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION:
(i) ISIN Code:
(i)  Common Code:

(i) Any clearing system(s) other than
Euroclear Bank SA/NV and
Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme and the relevant
identification number(s):

(iv)  Delivery:

(v) Names and addresses of

additional Paying Agent(s) (if any):

(Insert here any other relevant
codes such as CUSIP and CINS
codes)

(vi)  Intended to be held in a manner
which would allow Eurosystem
eligibility:

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]

[

[]
[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Delivery [against/free of] payment

[

[Yes] [No]

[Note that the designation “yes” simply means that
the Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited
with one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper and
does not necessarily mean that the Notes will be
recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem
monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by
the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any or all
times during their life. Such recognition will
depend upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem
eligibility criteria.] [include this text if “yes”
selected in which case the Notes must be issued in
NGN form]

“Derivative Securities” are Notes (i) where the Final Redemption Amount of such Notes is other than 100 per cent. of the
nominal value of the Notes and (ii) to which the requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive Regulation will apply.
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The following is the form of Final Terms which will be completed in relation to each Tranche of Notes
with a denomination of €50,000 or more (or its equivalent in another currency) (References to
numbered Conditions are to the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Notes):

[Date]

KBC INTERNATIONALE FINANCIERINGSMAATSCHAPPIJ N.V.
(KBC IFIMA N.V.)

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]

Guaranteed by KBC Bank NV
under the €40,000,000,000

Euro Medium Term Note Programme
PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
“Conditions”) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 14th July, 2010 which constitutes a base
prospectus for the purposes of Directive 2003/71/EC (the “Prospectus Directive”). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the
Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus [as so supplemented].
Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of a
combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. The Base Prospectus is available on the
website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at www.bourse.lu and the website of KBC at
www.kbc.com and copies may be obtained during normal business hours at the registered office of
the Issuer.

[The following alternative language applies if the first Tranche of an issue which is being increased was
issued under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
“Conditions”) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date]. This document constitutes the
Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the
“Prospectus Directive”) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated [current
date] which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect
of the Conditions which are extracted from the Base Prospectus dated [original date] and are attached
hereto. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the
combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectuses dated [current date] and [original date].
Copies of such Base Prospectuses are available on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
www.bourse.lu and the website of KBC at www.kbc.com and copies may be obtained during normal
business hours at the registered office of the Issuer.]

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should ensure that they understand the nature of the Notes and
the extent of their exposure to risk and that they consider the suitability of the Notes as an investment
in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Prospective purchasers should
conduct their own investigations and, in deciding whether or not to purchase Notes, prospective
purchasers should form their own views of the merits of an investment related to the [currencies,
shares, etc.] based upon such investigations and not in reliance upon any information given in this
document.

[Consider including the following paragraph]
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[No person has been authorised to give any information or make any representation not contained in
or not consistent with these Final Terms, or any other information supplied in connection with the
Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorised by the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer.

By investing in the Notes each investor represents that:

(a)  Non-Reliance. It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions
to invest in the Notes and as to whether the investment in the Notes is appropriate or proper
for it based upon its own judgement and upon advice from such advisers as it has deemed
necessary. It is not relying on any communication (written or oral) of the Issuer, the Guarantor
or any Dealer as investment advice or as a recommendation to invest in the Notes, it being
understood that information and explanations related to the terms and conditions of the Notes
shall not be considered to be investment advice or a recommendation to invest in the Notes.
No communication (written or oral) received from the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer shall
be deemed to be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of the investment in the
Notes.

(b)  Assessment and Understanding. It is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on
its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and understands and accepts the
terms and conditions and the risks of the investment in the Notes. It is also capable of assuming,
and assumes, the risks of the investment in the Notes.

(c)  Status of Parties. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor and any Dealer is acting as a fiduciary for
or adviser to it in respect of the investment in the Notes.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the
numbering should remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual
paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Final Terms.]

[When adding any other final terms or information consideration should be given as to whether such
terms or information constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum
denomination may need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1. (i) Series Number: []
(i) [Tranche Number: []

(If fungible with an existing Series, details of that
Series, including the date on which the Notes
become fungible)]

2. Status of Notes: [Senior Guaranteed Notes/Dated Subordinated
Guaranteed Notes]

3. Specified Currency or Currencies: [
4. Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(i) [Series:] []
(i) [Tranche: [ 1]
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5. Issue Price:

6. (i)

(i)

(i)

Specified Denominations:

Calculation Amount:

[Issue Date:]

[Interest Commencement Date (if
different from the Issue Date):

Maturity Date:

Business Day Convention for
Maturity Date:

[ 1 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount
[plus accrued interest from [insert datel (if
applicable)]

[]

(Note — where multiple denominations above
€50,000 or equivalent are being used the following
sample wording should be followed:

“€50,000 and integral multiples of €1,000 in
excess thereof up to and including €99,000. No
Notes in definitive form will be issued with a
denomination above €99,000.”)

(N.B. If an issue of Notes is (i) NOT admitted to
trading on an European Economic Area exchange;
and (ii) only offered in the European Economic
Area in circumstances where a prospectus is not
required to be published under the Prospectus
Directive the €50,000 minimum denomination is
not required.)

[]

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the
Specified Denomination.

If more than one Specified Denomination, insert
the highest common factor. Note: There must be a
common factor in the case of two or more
Specified Denominations.)

[
[ 1]

[specify date]/[Interest Payment Date falling in [or
nearest to] [specify month and yearl/[| 1 Business
Days after the [final] Valuation Date, expected to
be [ 1] [(the “Scheduled Maturity Date”), subject as
provided in Condition 10(e) [, and] [Condition
10()] [and] [Condition 10(g)] [and] [(Condition
10(h)] (include for Credit Linked Notes but include
as applicable: see below)]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[The Additional Business Centre(s) [is/are][ 1]
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9. Interest Basis [[ ] per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[specify reference rate] + [ ] per cent. Floating
Rate]

[Zero Coupon]

[Index Linked Interest]

[Equity Linked Interest]

[Currency Linked Interest]

[Inflation Linked Interest]

[Commodity Linked Interest]

[non-interest bearing]

[specify other]

(further particulars specified below)
10.  Redemption/Payment Basis: [Redemption at par]

[Index Linked Redemption]

[Equity Linked Redemption]

[Credit Linked Redemption]

[Currency Linked Redemption]

[Inflation Linked Redemption]

[Commodity Linked Redemption]

[Dual Currency]

[Partly Paid]

[Instalment]

[specify other]

11. Change of Interest Basis or [Specify details of any provision for convertibility
Redemption/Payment Basis: of Notes into another Interest Basis or
Redemption/Payment Basis]

12. Put/Call Options: [Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

13.  Tax Gross-Up: [Condition 11(a) applicable]/[Condition 11(b)
applicable]

90



14. Method of distribution:

(N.B. Only one of Condition 11(a) and 11(b)
should be specified as applicable. If Condition
11(a) is specified as applicable, Condition 5(b)
will be applicable. If Condition 11(b) is specified
as applicable, Condition 5(b) will not be
applicable)

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15. Fixed Rate Note Provisions

(iii)

(viii)

Rate[s] of Interest:

Interest Period End Date(s):

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Date(s):

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Fixed Coupon Amount][s]:
(Applicable to Notes in
definitive form.)

Broken Amount(s]:
(Applicable to Notes in
definitive form.)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

remaining

[ ] per cent. per annum

[payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly]
in arrear] (if payable other than annually, consider
amending Condition 3).

[ ] in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Date

(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of
long or short coupons)

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[[]in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Datel/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[

[ ] per Calculation Amount

[ ] per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest
Payment Date falling [in/on] [ ]
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16.

(ix)  Day Count Fraction:

(x) Determination Date(s):

(xi)  Other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Note Provisions

(i) Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

(i) Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

(iii)  Interest Payment Dates:

(iv)  Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual (ICMA)

Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)
[1in each year

[Insert regular Interest Period End Dates, ignoring
issue date or maturity date in the case of a long or
short first or last coupon]

(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of
regular Interest Period End Dates which are not of
equal duration) (NB: Only relevant where Fixed
Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA))

[None/give details]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/ Modified Following Business Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day Convention/
specify other/Not Applicable]

[[ ] in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Date][Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

Additional Business Centre(s):

Manner in which the Rate(s) of
Interest and Interest Amount(s)

is/are to be determined:

Party responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and Interest
Amount(s) (if not the Guarantor):

Screen Rate Determination:

- Reference Rate:

— Interest Determination Date(s):

- Relevant Screen Page:

ISDA Determination:

- Floating Rate Option:

- Designated Maturity:
- Reset Date:
Margin(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

[]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/
specify other (give details)]

—
[—

[ 1 (Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although
additional information is required if other —
including any amendment to the fall back
provisions in the Agency Agreement)

[]

(Second day on which commercial banks are open
for general business (including dealings in foreign
exchange and foreign currency deposits) in
London prior to the start of each Interest Period if
LIBOR (other than euro LIBOR or Sterling LIBOR),
first day of each Interest Period if Sterling LIBOR
and the second day on which the TARGET2
System is open prior to the start of each Interest
Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

[

(in the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters
EURIBORO1, ensure it is a page which shows a
composite rate)

[+/-] [ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)
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17.

18.

(Xiv)

Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions, denominator and any
other terms relating to the method
of calculating interest on Floating
Rate Notes, if different from those
set out in the Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

Index

(i)

Accrual Yield:
Reference Price:

Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable:

Day Count Fraction in relation to
Early Redemption Amounts and
late payment:

Linked Interest Note Provisions

Formula for calculating interest
rate including provisions for
determining Coupon where
calculation by reference to
Index/Indices is impossible or
impracticable and other back up
provisions:

Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of indices or a single index,
the identity of the relevant
Index/Indices and details of the
relevant sponsors:

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis
30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the

subparagraphs of this paragraph)

remaining

[ ] per cent. per annum
[
[

[Conditions 5(e)(iii) and 5(k) apply/specify other]
(Consider applicable day count fraction if not U.S.
dollar denominated)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the

subparagraphs of this paragraph)

remaining

[give or annex details]

[Basket of Indices/Single Index]
[(Cive or annex details)]

[The Index is a Designated Multi-Exchange Index.]
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Calculation Agent responsible for
calculating the Rate(s) of Interest
and Interest Amount(s) and for
making calculations pursuant to
Condition 7:

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Exchange(s):

(N.B. Designated Multi-Exchange Index only
applies in relation to the Euro Stoxx Index unless
otherwise specifically agreed)

[Give name and address)]

[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[[']in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Datel/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[]

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[]
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19.

(xii) Related Exchange(s):
(xiii) Valuation Date(s):
(xiv) Valuation Time:

(xv)  Strike Price:

(xvi) Multiplier for each Index
comprising the basket:

(xvii) Correction of Index Levels:

(xviii) Correction Cut-Off Date:

(xix) Trade Date
(xxi) Other terms or special conditions:

Equity Linked Interest Note Provisions

() Formula for calculating interest
rate including back up provisions:

(i) Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of equity securities or a
single equity security, and the
identity of the relevant issuer(s) of
the Underlying Equity/Equities):

(ii)  Calculation Agent responsible for
calculating the Rate(s) of Interest
and Interest Amount(s) and for
making calculations pursuant to
Condition 8:

(iv)  Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

(v)  Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

[ /All Exchanges]

[]

[Condition 7(c) applies/other]
[

[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Index Levels [applies/does not apply
and the Reference Price shall be calculated
without regard to any subsequently published
correction].

(If Correction of Index Levels does not apply, delete
the following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to each Interest Payment
Date.

[
[
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[Give or annex details]

[Basket of Underlying Equities/Single Underlying
Equity] [Give or annex details]

[Give name and address]

[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)
(Xxiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange(s):
Potential Adjustment Events:

De-listing, Merger Event,
Nationalisation and Insolvency:

Tender Offer:

Valuation Date(s):

(xviii) Valuation Time:

(Xxix)

(xx)

Strike Price:

Exchange Rate:

[[ ] in each year starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Datel/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Day Convention/specify other/Not

Business
Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]

[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)

Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis
30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)
[

[ /All Exchanges]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[]
[Condition 8(e) applies/other]

[
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Insert details]
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20.

(xxi)

Multiplier for each Underlying
Equity comprising the basket
(which is subject to adjustment as
set out in Condition 8(b)):

(xxii) Correction of Share Prices:

(xxiii) Correction Cut-Off Date:

(xxiv) Trade Date:

(xxv) Other terms or special conditions:

Commodity Linked Interest Note
Provisions

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Relevant Commodity or
Commodities:

Formula for calculating interest
rate including back up provisions:

Calculation Agent responsible for :

calculating the Rate(s) of Interest
and Interest Amount(s)

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:

[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Share Prices [applies/does not apply
and the Reference Price shall be calculated
without regard to any subsequently published
correction].

(If Correction of Share Prices does not apply, delete
the following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to each Interest Payment
Date.

[
[]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[ ] [which is a Bullion Commodity]

[Give or annex details]

[

[

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[[1in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Date]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[
[
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(x) Maximum Rate of Interest:

(xi)  Day Count Fraction:

(xii)  Pricing Date(s):

(xiii)  Commodity Business Day
Convention:

(xiv) Common Pricing:

(xv) Commodity Business Day:
(xvi) Commodity Reference Price:

(xvii) Specified Price:

(xviii) Delivery Date:

(xix) Unit:
(xx)  Price Source:
(xxi) Exchange(s):

(xxii) Market Disruption Event(s):

[]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
30E/360 or Eurobond Basis

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)

[]

[Following/ Modified Following/Nearest/Preceding]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Notes linked to
a basket of Commodities)

[Specify/The definition in Condition 6 applies]
[

[high pricel[low price][average of high and low
prices][closing  pricel[opening price][bid
price]lasked price][average of bid and asked
prices][settlement  price][official  settlement
pricel[official pricel[morning fixing][afternoon
fixing] [spot price][other] [insert time, if applicable]

[date][month and year][[First/Second/Third/other]
Nearby Month][specify method]

[]
[
The relevant Exchangels] [is/are] [ ].

[The following Market Disruption Events apply to
the Notes:

[Price Source Disruption]
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(xxiii) Disruption Fallback(s):

(xxiv) Reference Dealers:

(xxv) Maximum Days of Disruption:

(xxvi) Strike Price:

(xxvii) Correction of Commodity Prices:

[Trading Disruption: specify any additional
futures/options

contract commodity]

[Disappearance of Commodity Reference Price]
[Material Change in Formula]

[Material Change in Content]

[Tax Disruption]]

[Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Market Disruption
Events specified in that Condition will apply)

[The following Disruption Fallbacks apply to the
Notes (in the following order):

[Fallback Reference Dealers: specify alternate
Commodity Reference Price] [Fallback Reference
Price]

[Cancellation]

[Postponement]

[Calculation Agent Determination]
[Delayed Publication and Announcement]
[specify other]]

[Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Disruption
Fallbacks specified in that Condition will apply)

[Specify four dealers]
[]

(If no Maximum Days of Disruption are stated,
Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to five)

[]

Correction of Commodity Prices [applies/does not
apply and the Relevant Price shall be calculated
without regard to any subsequently published
correction].

(If Correction of Commodity Prices does not apply,
delete the following sub paragraph)
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21.

(xxviii)

Correction Cut-Off Date:

(xxix) Trade Date:

(xxx) Other terms or special conditions:

Currency Linked Interest Note Provisions

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Relevant Currency:

Formula for calculating interest

rate including back up provisions:

Calculation Agent responsible for
calculating the Rate(s) of Interest
and Interest Amount(s):

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

[ ] Business Days prior to each Interest Payment
Date.

[
[
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[Give or annex details]

[Give name and address]

[

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[[1in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Date]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis

30E/360 or Eurobond Basis
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22.

(xii)

Other terms or special conditions:

Inflation Linked Interest Note Provisions

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Relevant inflation index or indices:

Formula for calculating interest
rate including back up provisions:

Calculation Agent responsible for
calculating the Rate(s) of Interest
and Interest Amount(s):

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period End Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Period End Dates:

Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention for
Interest Payment Dates:

Additional Business Day Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)
[

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[Give or annex details]

[Give name and address]

[

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other/Not Applicable]

[[1in each year, starting on [ ], up to and including
the Maturity Date]/[Interest Payment Dates will
correspond to Interest Period End Dates]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[Specify one of the options listed below]
[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis
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23.

24.

(xii)  Other terms or special conditions:

Dual Currency Note Provisions

(i) Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

(i) Calculation Agent, if any,
responsible for calculating the
principal and/or interest due:

(iii)  Provisions applicable where
calculation by reference to Rate
of Exchange impossible or
impracticable:

(iv)  Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

Additional Disruption Events (applicable
to Index Linked Interest Notes and
Equity Linked Interest Notes only):

30E/360 or Eurobond Basis
30E/360 (ISDA)

1/1

Other]

(see Condition 3 for alternatives)
[

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[Give or annex details]

[Give name and address]

[Need to include a description of market
disruption or settlement disruption events and
adjustment provision]

[]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Additional Disruption Events are only applicable
to certain types of Index Linked Interest Notes or
Equity Linked Interest Notes]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Change in Law

Hedging Disruption

[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Insolvency Filing]

(NB: Only applicable in the case of Equity Linked
Interest Notes)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

25.

26.

Issuer Call

(i)  Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Business Day Convention for
Optional Redemption Dates:

(i) Optional Redemption Amount and
method, if any, of calculation of
such amount:

(iv)  If redeemable in part:

(@ Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(b)  Maximum Redemption
Amount:

(V) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

Investor Put

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Business Day Convention for
Optional Redemption Dates:

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of
[specify in relation to each Underlying
Equity/security] is [ 1.

(NB: Only applicable if Loss of Stock Borrow is
applicable)

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each Underlying Equity/security] is [ ].

(NB: Only applicable if Increased Cost of Stock
Borrow is applicable)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[The Additional Business Centre(s) [is/are][ 1] [ ]
per Calculation Amount

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/ Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other/Not
Applicable]

[The Additional Business Centre(s) [is/are][ 1]
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27.

28.

(i)~ Optional Redemption Amount and
method, if any, of calculation of
such amount:

(iv)  Notice period (if other than as set :

out in the Conditions)

Final Redemption Amount:

Early Redemption Amount:

Early Redemption Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on
event of default or on an illegality (or,
in the case of Commodity Linked
Notes, if the circumstances set out in
Condition 6(c)(iii) have arisen or, in the
case of Index Linked Notes, following
an Index Adjustment Event in
accordance with Condition 7(b)(ii)(b)
or, in the case of Equity Linked Notes,
following a De-listing and/or Merger
Event and/or Nationalisation and/or
Insolvency and/or Tender Offer in
accordance with Condition 8(b)(ii)(b)
or, in the case of Index Linked Notes or
Equity Linked Notes, following an
Additional Disruption Event (if
applicable) or, in the case of Credit
Linked Notes, following a Merger
Event, and/or the method of calculating
the same (required if Early Redemption
Amount different from that set out in
Condition 5(e)):

[ 1 per Calculation Amount

[]

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different
to those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is
advised to consider the practicalities of distribution
of information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any
other notice requirements which may apply, for
example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[[ 1 per Calculation Amount/ specify other/see
Appendix]

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other
than 100 per cent. of the nominal value the Notes
will be Derivative Securities* for the purposes of
the Prospectus Directive and the requirements of
Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive Regulation
will apply.)

[[ ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/see
Appendix]

[(Consider including the wording below for
Commodity Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes,
Equity Linked Notes or Credit Linked Notes)]

With respect to each Calculation Amount, such
amount(s) determined by the Calculation Agent
which shall represent the fair market value of such
Calculation Amount on the date of redemption,
including accrued interest (if any), adjusted to
account fully for any losses, expenses and costs to
the Issuer (or any of its affiliates) of unwinding any
underlying or related hedging and funding
arrangements, all as determined by the Calculation
Agent. For the purposes hereof:

(i) the references to “together (if appropriate) with
interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of
redemption” shall be deemed to be deleted from
each of Condition 5(b) and Condition 5(h); and

(ii) the references to “together with accrued
interest thereon to the date of repayment” shall be
deemed to be deleted from Condition 13.]
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29.

30.

31.

Currency Linked Redemption Notes:

(i)

(iii)

Relevant Currency:

Calculation Agent responsible for
making calculations:

Relevant provisions for
determining amount of principal
payable:

Inflation Linked Redemption Notes:

Index

(i)

Relevant inflation index or indices:

Calculation Agent responsible for
making calculations:

Relevant provisions for
determining amount of principal
payable:

Linked Redemption Notes:

Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of indices or a single index,
the identity of the relevant
Index/Indices and details of the
relevant sponsors:

Calculation Agent responsible for
making calculations pursuant to
Condition 7:

[“Condition 5(e) applies” should be inserted for all
other types of Notes]

[N.B. This section does not apply to any Notes
with an automatic redemption feature. Any
automatic redemption feature should be set out in
the relevant “Redemption Amount” paragraph of
the applicable Final Terms or in an Annex thereto.]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[1]

[Give name and address]

[

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[Give name and address]

[

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Basket of Indices/Single Index]
[(Give or annex details)]
[The Index is a Designated Multi-Exchange Index]

(N.B. Designated Multi-Exchange Index only
applies in relation to the Euro Stoxx Index unless
otherwise specifically agreed)

[Give name and address]
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32.

(iii)  Exchange(s):
(iv)  Related Exchange(s):

(v} Redemption Amount: [if Not
Applicable:

(vi)  Valuation Date:
(vii)  Valuation Time:
(viii) Strike Price:

(ix)  Multiplier for each Index
comprising the basket:

(x) Correction of Index Levels:

(xi)  Correction Cut-Off Date:
(xii) Trade Date
(xiii) Other terms or special conditions:

Equity Linked Redemption Notes:

() Whether the Notes relate to a
basket of equity securities or a
single equity security, and the
identity of the relevant issuer(s) of
the Underlying Equity/Equities):

(i) Whether redemption of the Notes
will be by (a) Cash Settlement or
(b) Physical Delivery or (c) Cash
Settlement and/or Physical
Delivery:

(i) Calculation Agent responsible for
making calculations pursuant to
Condition 8

(iv)  Exchange:

[]
[ /All Exchanges]
[Express per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]

[Call Index Linked Redemption Notes/Put Index
Linked Redemption Notes]]

[]
[Condition 7(c) applies/other]

[
[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Index Levels [applies/does not apply
and the Reference Price shall be calculated
without regard to any subsequently published
correction].

(If Correction of Index Levels does not apply, delete
the following sub paragraph)

[ 1 Business Days prior to the Maturity Date.
[]

[]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Basket of Underlying Equities/Single Underlying
Equity] [(Give or annex details)]

[Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery/Cash Settlement
and/or Physical Delivery]

(If Cash Settlement and/or Physical Delivery
specified, specify details for determining in what
circumstances Cash Settlement or Physical
Delivery will apply)

: [Give name and address]
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(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

(Xxiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Related Exchange(s):

Potential Adjustment Events:
De-listing, Merger Event,
Nationalisation and Insolvency:

Tender Offer:

Redemption Amount: [If Not
Applicable:

Valuation Date:
Valuation Time:
Strike Price:

Exchange Rate:

Multiplier for each Underlying
Equity comprising the basket
(which is subject to adjustment as
set out in Condition 8(b)):

Correction of Share Prices:

Correction Cut-Off Date:

(xvii) Trade Date:

(xviii) Relevant Assets:

(Xxix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii) Failure to deliver due to llliquidity:

Asset Amount:

Cut-Off Date:

Delivery provisions for Asset
Amount (including details of who
is to make such delivery):

(xxiii) Other terms or special conditions:

[ /All Exchanges]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Express per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]

[Call Equity Linked Redemption Notes/Put Equity
Linked Redemption Notes]]

[]

[Condition 8(e) applies/other]

[

[Applicable/Not Applicable] [Insert details]
[Insert details/Not Applicable]

Correction of Share Prices [applies/does not apply
and the Reference Price shall be calculated
without regard to any subsequently published
correction].

(If Correction of Share Prices does not apply, delete
the following sub paragraph)

[ ] Business Days prior to the Maturity Date.
[

[]

[Express per Calculation Amount]

[[ 1 calendar days after the Valuation Date/other]]
[N.B. in any event BEFORE the Maturity Date

[ 1 [The Delivery Agentis [ ] |

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(NB: Only applicable to certain types of Equity
Linked Redemption Notes).

[]
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33.

34.

Additional Disruption Events
(applicable to Index Linked
Redemption Notes and Equity Linked
Redemption Notes only):

Credit Linked Notes:

[NB: Consider whether definitions
included in Conditions are up to date]

General
(i)  Redemption Amount:

(i) Settlement Method:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Additional Disruption Events are only applicable
to certain types of Index Linked Redemption Notes
or Equity Linked Redemption Notes]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Change in Law

Hedging Disruption

[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Insolvency Filing]

(NB: Only applicable in the case of Equity Linked
Redemption Notes)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of
[specify in relation to each Underlying
Equity/security] is [ ].

(NB: Only applicable if Loss of Stock Borrow is
applicable)

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each Underlying Equity/security] is [ ].

(NB: Only applicable if Increased Cost of Stock
Borrow is applicable)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Express per Calculation Amount]

[Auction Settlement/Cash Settlement/Physical
Delivery]

[If Auction Settlement:

The provisions of Condition 10(b) shall apply]
[If Cash Settlement:

The provisions of Condition 10(c) shall apply]

[If Physical Delivery:
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The Provisions of Condition 10(d) shall apply]
(ili)  Trade Date: []

(iv)  Scheduled Termination Date: [The day falling [five] Business Days prior to the
Scheduled Maturity Date/specify other]

(v)  Calculation Agent responsible for  [Give name and address]
making calculations and
determinations pursuant to
Condition 10:

(vi)  Calculation Agent City: []
Credit Provisions

(vii)  Reference Entity(ies): []
(viii) Reference Obligation(s): []

[The obligation[s] identified as follows:

Primary Obligor: []
Guarantor: [
Maturity: []
Coupon: [
CUSIP/ISIN: [1]
(ix)  All Guarantees: [Applicable/Not Applicable]

— Provisions relating to Qualifying Guarantee and
Underlying Obligation: Condition 10(q)
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(x)  Credit Events: [Bankruptcy]
[Failure to Pay]

[Grace Period Extension (Condition 10(f))
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[If Applicable:

Grace Period: [ 1]
[Obligation Acceleration]
[Obligation Default]
[Repudiation/Moratorium]

[Maturity Date Extension: Condition 10(h):
[Applicable/Not Applicable]]

[Restructuring]
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Default Requirement:
Payment Requirement:

(xi)  Conditions to Settlement:

(xii) Obligation(s):

Obligation Category [select one only]:

Obligation Characteristics

[select all of which apply]:

— Provisions relating to Restructuring Credit
Event: Condition 10(n) [Applicable/Not
Applicable]

— Provisions relating to Multiple Holder
Obligation: Condition 10(0) [Applicable/Not
Applicable]

— [Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Fully
Transferable  Obligation  [Applicable/Not
Applicablel]

— [Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation
and Conditionally Transferable Obligation
[Applicable/Not Applicable]]

[other]
[]
[]

Notice of Publicly Available Information
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[If Applicable:
Public Source(s): [ 1]

(If other than in the definition in Condition 10(j).)
Specified Number: [ ]]

(If none specified, then it is deemed to be two.)

[Payment] [Borrowed Money]

[Reference Obligations Only]

[Bond]

[Loan]

[Bond or Loan]

[Not Subordinated]

[Specified Currency:

[specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies]
[Not Sovereign Lender]

[Not Domestic Currency:]

[Domestic Currency means: [specify currencyl]]
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Additional Obligation(s):

(xiii) - Provisions relating to Monoline

Insurer to Reference Entity:

(xiv) Excluded Obligation(s):

(xv)  Accrual of Interest upon Credit
Event:
(xvi) Merger Event: Condition 10(1):

If Applicable: Merger Event
Redemption Date:

(xvii) Unwind Costs:

Terms relating to Cash Settlement

(xviii) Credit Event Redemption Amount:

(xix) Credit Event Redemption Date:

(xx)  Valuation Date:

(xxi) Valuation Time:

(xxii) Quotation Method:

(xxiii) Quotation Amount:

(xxiv) Minimum Quotation Amount:

(xxv) Quotation Dealers:

(xxvi) Quotation:

(xxvii) Valuation Method:

[Not Domestic Law]
[Listed]
[Not Domestic Issuance]

[
Condition 10(p) [Applicable/Not Applicable]

[]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[

[Standard Unwind Costs/other/Not Applicable]

[Express per Calculation Amount]
[ ] Business Days

[Single Valuation Date:

[ ] Business Days]

[Multiple Valuation Dates:

[ 1 Business Days; and each [ | Business Days
thereafter.

Number of Valuation Dates: [ ]]
[

[Bid/Offer/Mid-market]

[[ I/Representative Amount]

[1]

[]

[Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued

Interest]

[Market/Highest]

[Average Market/Highest/Average Highest]
[Blended Market/Blended Highest]
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(xxviii) other terms or special condition:

Terms relating to Physical Delivery
(xxix)  Physical Settlement Period
(xxx)  Asset Amount:

(xxxi)  Settlement Currency:
(xxxii) Deliverable Obligations :

Deliverable Obligation Category
[select one only]:

Deliverable Obligation Characteristics
[select all of which apply]:

[Average Blended Market/Average Blended
Highest]

[

[ ] Business Days
[Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued Interest]

[]

[Payment]

[Borrowed Money]

[Reference Obligations Only]

[Bond]

[Loan]

[Bond or Loan]

[Not Subordinated] [Specified Currency:
[specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies]
[Not Sovereign Lender]

[Not Domestic Currency]

[Domestic Currency means: [specify currency]]
[Not Domestic Law]

[Listed]

[Not Contingent]

[Not Domestic Issuance]

[Assignable Loan]

[Consent Required Loan]

[Direct Loan Participation]

[Qualifying Participation Seller: — insert details]
[Transferable]

[Maximum Maturity: [ ]]

[Accelerated or Matured]

[Not Bearer]
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35.

Additional Deliverable Obligation(s):

(]

(xxxiii) Excluded Deliverable Obligation(s): [ ]

(xxxiv) Indicative Quotations:
(xxxv) Cut-Off Date:

(xxxvi) Delivery provisions for Asset
Amount (including details of
who is to make such delivery) if
different from Terms and
Conditions:

(xxxvii) Other terms or special conditions:

Additional terms relating to Auction
Settlement:

(xxxviii) Fallback Settlement Method:

(xxxix) Additional Business Centre(s):

(xxxx)  Business Day Convention for
purposes of Condition 10:

(xxxxi) Succession Event Backstop Date
subject to adjustment in
accordance with Business Day
Convention:

(xxxxii) Limitation Dates subject to
adjustment in accordance with
Business Day Convention:

Commodity Linked Redemption Notes:

(i) Relevant Commodity or
Commodities:

(if) Calculation Agent responsible
for making calculations:

(iii) Relevant provisions for
determining amount of principal
payable:

(iv) Redemption Amount:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[
[1]

—
f—

[Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery]
[If Physical Delivery:
The provisions of Condition 10(i) shall apply]

[ ]
[Following/Modified Following/Preceding]

[Yes/No]

[Yes/No]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)
[ ] [which is a Bullion Commodity]

[Give name and address]

[

[Express per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]
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(v) Pricing Date(s):

(vi) Commodity Business Day
Convention:

(vii) Common Pricing:

(viii)  Commodity Business Day:
(ix) Commodity Reference Price:

(x)  Specified Price:

(xi)  Delivery Date:

(xii)  Unit: []
(xiii) Price Source:
(xiv) Exchange(s):

(xv)  Market Disruption Event(s):

(xvi) Disruption Fallback(s):

[]

[Following/ Modified Following/Nearest/
Preceding]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Notes linked to
a basket of Commodities)

[Specify/The definition in Condition 6 applies]
[]

[high pricel[low price][average of high and low
prices][closing pricel[opening pricel [bid
pricellasked price]laverage of bid and asked
prices][settlement  price][official  settlement
pricel[official price][morning fixing][afternoon
fixing] [spot price][other] [insert time, if applicable]

[date][month and year][[First/Second/Third/other]
Nearby Month][specify method]

[
The relevant Exchangel(s] [is/are] [ ].

[The following Market Disruption Events apply to
the Notes:

[Price Source Disruption]

[Trading Disruption: specify any additional
futures/options contract commodity]

[Disappearance of Commodity Reference Price]
[Material Change in Formula]

[Material Change in Content]

[Tax Disruption]]

[Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Market Disruption
Events specified in that Condition will apply)

[The following Disruption Fallbacks apply to the
Notes (in the following order):

[Fallback Reference Dealers: specify alternate
Commodity Reference Price]

[Fallback Reference Price]
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(xvii) Reference Dealers:

(xviii) Maximum Days of Disruption:

(xix) Strike Price:

(xx)  Correction of Commodity Prices:

(xxi) Correction Cut-Off Date:

(xxii) Trade Date:

[Cancellation]

[Postponement]

[Calculation Agent Determination]
[Delayed Publication and Announcement]
[specify other]] [Condition 6 applies]

(NB: if Condition 6 applies, the Disruption
Fallbacks specified in that Condition will apply)

[Specify four dealers]
[]

(If no Maximum Days of Disruption are stated,
Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to five)

[

Correction of Commodity Prices [applies/does not
apply and the Relevant Price shall be calculated
without regard to any subsequently published
correction].

(If Correction of Commodity Prices does not apply,
delete the following sub paragraph)

[ 1 Business Days prior to the Maturity Date.
[

(xxiii) Other terms and special conditions: [ ]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

36.

Form of Notes:

(i) Form:

(i) New Global Note:

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Global Note which is exchangeable for
definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes upon specified number of days
notice]

Notes shall not be physically delivered in Belgium,
except to a clearing system, a depositary or other
institution for the purpose of their immobilisation
in accordance with article 4 of the Belgian Law of
14th December, 2005.

[Yes][NoO]
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37.

38.

39.

40.

41

42.

43.

Additional Financial Centre(s) or
other special provisions relating to
Payment Days:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts
to be attached to Definitive Notes (and
dates on which such Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid Notes:
amount of each payment comprising
the Issue Price and date on which
each payment is to be made and
consequences (if any) of failure to pay,
including any right of the Issuer to
forfeit the Notes and interest due on
late payment:

Details relating to Instalment Notes:
() Instalment Amount(s):
(i) Instalment Date(s):

If the Specified Currency is the
currency of a member state of the
European Union, whether a
Redenomination Clause is to be
included:

Consolidation provisions:

Other final terms:

DISTRIBUTION

44,

(i) If syndicated, names of Managers:

[Not Applicable/give details] (Note that this item
relates to the place of payment and not “Business
Days” for the purposes of the Maturity Date,
Interest Payment Dates, Interest Period End Dates
and Optional Redemption Dates)

[Yes/No (If yes, give details)]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(NB: a new form of Temporary Global Note
and/or Permanent Global Note may be required
for Partly Paid issues)

[Not Applicable/give details]
[Not Applicable/give details]
[Redenomination [not] applicable]

(If Redenomination is applicable, specify the terms
of the Redenomination in an Appendix to the Final
Terms)

[Not Applicable/The provisions annexed to these
Final Terms apply]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(When adding any other final terms consideration
should be given as to whether such terms
constitute  “significant new  factors” and
consequently trigger the need for a supplement to
the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the
Prospectus Directive)

[Not Applicable/give names

(If the Notes are Derivative Securities, include
names of entities agreeing to underwrite the issue
on a firm commitment basis and names of the
entities agreeing to place the issue without a firm
commitment or on a “best efforts” basis if such
entities are not the same as the managers.)
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(i) Date of Subscription Agreement: []

(The above is only relevant if the Notes are
Derivative Securities).

(iii) ~ Stabilising Manager (if any): [Not Applicable/give name]
45.  If non-syndicated, name of relevant [Not Applicable/give name]
Dealer:
46.  U.S. Selling Restrictions: [Reg. S Compliance Category; TEFRA D/TEFRA

C/TEFRA not applicable]

47.  Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]

PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required for issue [and admission to trading on [specify
relevant regulated market (for example the Bourse de Luxembourg)]] of the Notes described herein
pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme of KBC Internationale
Financieringsmaatschappij N.V. (KBC IFIMA N.V.).]

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

[[ ] (the “Reference Information”) has been extracted from [ |. The Issuer confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain
from information published by [ 1, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced

information inaccurate or misleading].

Signed on behalf of the Issuer: Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:
By o BY:
Duly authorised Duly authorised

118



PART B — OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING:

(i) Listing and Admission to
trading:

(i) Estimate of total expenses
related to admission to
trading:

RATINGS:

[Application has been made by the lIssuer (or on its
behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on [specify
relevant regulated market (for example the Bourse de
Luxembourg)] with effect from [@].] [Application is
expected to be made by the Issuer (or on its behalf) for
the Notes to be admitted to trading on [specify relevant
regulated market (for example the Bourse de
Luxembourg)] with effect from [@].] [Not Applicable.]

(@]

The Notes to be issued have not been rated. The rating of
the Guarantor is:

[S & P: [@]]
[Moody’s: [@]]
[Fitch: [@]]
[[Other]: [@]]

[Need to include here a brief explanation of the meaning
of the ratings if this has previously been published by the
rating provider.]

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE:

[Save for any fees payable to the [Dealers/Managers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. - Amend as appropriate

if there are other interests]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES:

(i) [Reasons for the offer:

(ii)  [Estimated net proceeds:

(@]]

(See “Use of Proceeds” wording in Base Prospectus — if
reasons for offer different from making profit and/or
hedging certain risks will need to include those reasons
here.)

(@]]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need
to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds
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insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and
sources of other funding.)

(iii)  [Estimated total expenses: (@] [Expenses are required to be broken down into each
principal intended “use” and presented in order of
priority of such “uses”]

(N.B.: Delete unless are Derivative Securities* to which
Annex Xl of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies,
in which case (i) above is required where the reasons for
the offer are different from making profit and/or hedging
certain risks regardless of the minimum denomination of
the securities and where this is the case disclosure of net
proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and (iii) above are
also required.)

YIELD: (Fixed Rate Notes only)
Indication of yield: (@]

[Calculated as [include details of method of calculation
in summary form] on the Issue Date.]

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of
the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.

PERFORMANCE OF [INDEX/BASKET OF INDICES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE
OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE [INDEX/BASKET OF INDICES]: (Index-Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula can be obtained
on [insert relevant Bloomberg page].

[Need to include the name of [the/each] Index and a description if composed by the Issuer and
if [the/each] Index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the
information about [the/each] Index can be obtained.]

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

PERFORMANCE OF [THE EQUITY/BASKET OF EQUITIES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING [THE EQUITY/BASKET OF EQUITIES]] (Equity Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the equity/basket of equities can be
obtained on [insert relevant Bloomberg pagel.

[Need to include the name of [the/each] issuer of the [equity/equities in the basket] and the
ISIN or other identification code]
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10.

11.

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

PERFORMANCE OF [RATE[S] OF EXCHANGE/FORMULA/CURRENCIES/ INFLATION INDEX
OR INDICES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED
RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE [RATE[S] OF
EXCHANGE/FORMULA/CURRENCIES/ INFLATION INDEX OR INDICES]] (Currency Linked
Note, Inflation Linked Notes or Notes linked to any other underlying only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the relevant
rates/formula/currencies/inflation index or indices can be obtained on [insert relevant
Bloomberg pagel.

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

PERFORMANCE OF [THE COMMODITY/BASKET OF COMMODITIES], EXPLANATION OF
EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE COMMODITY/BASKET OF COMMODITIES]]
(Commodity Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the relevant commodity/basket of
commodities can be obtained on [insert relevant Bloomberg pagel.

[Need to include [the/each] commodity identification code (if any)]

[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE REFERENCE ENTITY, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING THE REFERENCE ENTITY] (Credit Linked Notes only)

The details of past and future performance and volatility of the Reference Entity can be obtained
on linsert relevant Bloomberg pagel.

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION:
(i) ISIN Code: LJ
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(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Common Code:

Any clearing system(s) other
than Euroclear Bank SA/NV
and Clearstream Banking,
société anonyme and the
relevant identification
number(s):

Delivery:

Names and addresses of
additional Paying Agent(s) (if
any):

Intended to be held in a
manner which would allow
Eurosystem eligibility:

L

[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Delivery [against/free of] payment
(@]

(Insert here any other relevant codes such as CUSIP and
CINS codes)

[Yes] [No]

[Note that the designation “yes” simply means that the
Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one
of the ICSDs as common safekeeper and does not
necessarily mean that the Notes will be recognised as
eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon
issue or at any or all times during their life. Such
recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the
Eurosystem eligibility criteria.] [include this text if “yes”
selected in which case the Notes must be issued in NGN
form]

“Derivative Securities” are Notes (i) where the Final Redemption Amount of such Notes is other than 100 per cent. of the
nominal value of the Notes and (ii) to which the requirements of